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Chairman’s Message
FEME

On behalf of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”), |
am pleased to present the annual results of China Best Group Holding
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year").

In 2015, the Group continued to lay the foundation for transforming
its principal activities into the financial service sector. During the year,
the Group developed the finance leasing business and obtained a
Hong Kong money lender licence through merger and acquisition. The
finance leasing business made considerable contributions to this year's
revenue, and during the year, financing agreements were entered into
for the money lending business and it is expected that respective income
will be recognized in 2016. For other existing businesses, the trading
business and freight forwarding business developed steadily during the
year. Due to the long-term losses of its coal business, an agreement
was entered into during the year to dispose of the coal business of the
Group and the disposal was completed prior to the date of this report.
The securities investment business recorded substantial losses due to
the fluctuating and downward sentiment of the stock market since the
second half of 2015. For the annual results, the losses of the Group
increased as compared with last year due to the unrealized loss of stock
portfolio, relevant expenses in stock options and losses in associated
companies.

As at 3 February 2016, the Company completed the issuance of the 2
billion new shares, bringing in shareholders with stronger background
and strategic significance (including Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co.,
Ltd* (FPHEDEEEBRE A7) and Zhongrong International Trust
Co., Ltd* (R RLBIBR{EFEAMR A ) ). In addition to strengthening
the shareholder and capital base of the Company, introduction of new
shareholders was also conducive to the development of the Group in
establishing the financial holding platform in the future.

Looking forward, it is expected that the Company’s integration with
new strategic shareholders and new management will generate thriving
synergy and bring in valuable experience of Zhongzhi Enterprise Group
Co., Lid* (FRFHEMRZESEEHFR2AF]) and Zhongrong International Trust
Co., Ltd* (P EABIB{E5E B R A7) . The Group will also focus on the
strategic transformation and integration of the existing businesses,
including putting in more resources to expand the finance leasing and
money lending businesses as well as reviewing the value and positioning
of each investment portfolio. On the other hand, the Group will still
continue to explore further investment opportunities in the financial
industry from time to time aiming to enter into the financial service
sector in different areas through acquisition and merger and for creating
an innovative and comprehensive financial holding platform.

*  For identification purposes only
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Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
heartfelt thanks to the management, all our employees and partners
for their contributions to the development of the Group as well as to
shareholders for their continued support to the Company. With the
support and contributions from all parties, the Group will continue to
strive for the best to achieve a better performance and create greater
value for shareholders!

Tan Xiangdong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENwR D

Increase/(Decrease)
2015 2014 2015 Vs 2014
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M %
(Restated) —E-REBR-_E-NE
—E-EF —T-mF BE/(TK)
BHEBR BEBT BHEBR %
(& E5)
Financial Results Highlight BEEERE
Continuing operations REREEB
Turnover BER 453.0 320.6 132.4 a1
Gross profit EH 32.3 12.1 20.2 167
Other operating (loss)/gain (net) Higs (B18) /R
(%) (10.8) 42 (15.0) (357)
Total expenses X (58.2) (22.6) 35.6 158
Share of losses of associates DIEEE R EEE (9.2) = 9.2 Not
applicable
TEA
Net loss before tax & RABRBARFERER
non-controlling interests Az EEFE
— from continuing operations - REBELEER (45.8) (6.3) 39.5 627
— from discontinued operation —REERIEEER (3.5) (21.7) (18.2) (84)
Loss for the year attributable to FARERAREFR
owners of the Company BE
— from continuing operations - REFELEES (47.5) (6.6) 40.9 620
— from discontinued operation —REEREEEES (1.2) (10.9) (9.7) (89)
(48.7) (17.5) 31.2 178
Extract of Financial Position B 7 R 05 B 8%
Total assets BE®RE 767.0 395.8 371.2 94
Total liabilities BEAR (74.0) (72.3) 1.7 2
Net current assets MBEEFE 530.0 250.7 279.3 1M1
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIRE 87.5 99.8 (12.3) (12)
Total net assets BEFEBHE 693.0 3235 369.5 114

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015



Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's turnover was
approximately HK$453.0 million, representing an increase of 41%
as compared with approximately HK$320.6 million in last year. The
Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$32.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015, compared with a gross profit of
approximately HK$12.1 million in last year. The net loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$48.7
million, representing an increase of 178% as compared with that of
approximately HK$17.5 million in last year. Such increase was mainly
attributable to, among other things, (i) unrealised fair value losses
of approximately HK$47.7 million in respect of investment in listed
securities held for trading as at 31 December 2015, which was partially
offset by realised gain of approximately HK$35.0 million derived from
trading in listed securities during the year; (i) share-based payment
expenses, which are of non-cash nature, of approximately HK$10.7
million in relation to the share options granted by the Company on 17
July 2015; (iii) share of losses of associates of approximately HK$9.2
million.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Finance Leasing Business

The Group commenced its finance leasing business in July 2015 and
engaged in providing finance lease services in the PRC. Up to 31
December 2015, the turnover of the Group's finance leasing business
amounted to approximately HK$15.5 million whereas the segment profit
of approximately HK$10.7 million was achieved.

Trading Business

The Group engaged in trading of goods, including fuel oil, radio system
and electronic appliance. Up to 31 December 2015, the turnover of
the Group’s trading business amounted to approximately HK$311.4
million (2014: approximately HK$260.8 million) whereas the gross profit
was approximately HK$13.1 million (2014: approximately HK$10.0
million). By leveraging its business network at Hong Kong and the PRC,
the Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$7.1 million (2014:
approximately HK$7.6 million) in this segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR D

Securities Investment Business

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the turnover of the Group’s
securities investment business amounted to approximately HK$118.0
million (2014: approximately HK$54.0 million).
Group recorded a realised gain of approximately HK$35.0 million (2014:
realised loss of approximately HK$5.4 million) and a net unrealised
loss of the listed securities of approximately HK$47.7 million (2014:
For the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Group received dividend income of
approximately HK$1.3 million (2014: approximately HK$0.4 million).
As at 31 December 2015, the Group was holding trading securities of
approximately HK$232.7 million in value (2014: approximately HK$98.0
million).

During the vyear, the

net unrealised gain of approximately HK$8.3 million).

Freight Forwarding Business

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the turnover of the Group's
freight forwarding business amounted to approximately HK$8.1 million
(2014: approximately HK$5.9 million). Gross profit of approximately
HK$2.4 million and segment profit of approximately HK$0.6 million
were made for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: gross profit
of approximately HK$1.7 million and segment profit of approximately
HK$70,000). There was no significant change in the Group's strategy
and plan regarding its freight forwarding business. The increase in
the segment turnover and profit is mainly attributable to the modest
recovery in the forwarding market of the United States of America.

Coal Business (classified as “Discontinued
Operation”)

The coal sector in the PRC is still in the cyclical adjustment stage
and the coal business segment of the Group has been facing tough
market conditions and unprecedented operating pressure. In 2015, the
Group prioritized the sale of inventory of manufactured coal products
currently held on hand rather than engaging in further production and
accordingly the production of coal in the coal business segment of the
Group stopped. However, up to 31 December 2015, the Group was
unable to seek customers to purchase the existing inventory at a profit
and thus no turnover of coal product was recorded for the year (2014:
approximately HK$9.2 million). The loss of this business segment was
approximately HK$2.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: approximately HK$19.9 million).

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015

HEREEK
HE-_ZT—AF+A=+—HIEHF
B AEBEBHFREEBZEERTY
£118,000,0008 (& —UF : 4
54,000,000 L) - F A AEE FHFE
818 B # 3 U %5 4935,000,0008 T (=&
— P4 228 E51E495,400,0008 7T ) ok
438 B 18 R 58 4947,700,00058 7T (== —M
¢ A B30 U 25 F RE 498,300,000/8 78 ) © &

—E-RAFFTA=t+—HLEFE &
%lauﬁzﬁuﬁﬁ A #91, 300 oooi%ﬁ(:
T — 04 : £9400,0008 ) - R - E—FHF
+=—A=+—81" ZKEEHEZ BEHE
E#)/4232,700,0008 T (ZE—UF: 4
98,000,000/ 7T ) °

BEXEK
BE_T—AF+_-_A=+—HBIHFE &K

BIEE X 2 & EREAAE8,100,0007 T
— = — P04 : 495,900,0008 L) - HE —
T-RAF+A=+—HULEFE EFHAE
2,400,000/ 7t & 73 &0 3% F) 49 /600,0004 7T
ZE—UF : £F451,700,0008 T KD
B03m R 49 570,0008 L) cAEEHETE
BEBZRBERTETEERNE (L - DEE
EEEREMNENTFERRANERNSE
2R FNIE R o

%%%ﬁ(ﬁﬁ%ra%iﬁﬁﬁ

FEZEREDEN B MEFHERE  mMA
EECZERER D —EEBEER TSR
BERBARZEERN - RN_T—HF -
NEFEEERETFHEBZACCEEERERE
miTEHEmMWEETE—FPEE Bt
AEBZRRESDBELEEER K -R
m&HEzE2-_T—AHF+= HZ+—E’$%
BReESKEEREEREGTEMA RN
utﬁ$iﬁﬁm§m1ﬂﬁ%%%%(_
T — P4 : 499,200,0008 ) cREE-F
—RFE+_AZ+—BLEFEE FEEHI
Z 1B #)/2,000,0008 7 ( ZZ—I4FE : 4
19,900,000/ 7T ) °

Bk



Management Discussion and Analysis

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 17 December
2015, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement on the
same day with an independent purchaser to dispose of the Group's coal
business. The disposal was completed in March 2016. The Company is
no longer engaged in the coal business after completion of the aforesaid
disposal.

LIQUIDITY AND CASHFLOW RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the equity and net current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$693.0 million (2014: approximately
HK$323.5 million) and approximately HK$530.0 million (2014:
approximately HK$250.7 million) respectively. On the same date, the
Group had bank balances and cash of approximately HK$87.5 million
(2014: approximately HK$99.8 million) and the current ratio was 8.16
(2014: 4.47).

As at 31 December 2014, the gearing ratio of the Group was 0.05. The
gearing ratio is measured on the basis of interest bearing borrowings
over total assets. As at 31 December 2014, the interest bearing
borrowings and total assets of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$21.2 million and approximately HK$395.8 million respectively. As at
31 December 2015, the interest bearing borrowings of approximately
HK$21.2 million was classified as held for sale. As such, no gearing ratio
was measured as at 31 December 2015.

The Group has sufficient and readily available financial resources for
both general working capital purposes and existing business plan.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, none of the Group’s securities was
pledged to brokers to secure the margin loan. As at 31 December 2015
and 2014, there were no other significant assets pledged to banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DM

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group incurred
approximately HK$8.9 million as capital expenditure (2014:
approximately HK$4.2 million).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no material capital
commitment. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had capital
commitments of approximately HK$2.0 million contracted but not
provided mainly in relation to acquisition of an associate and leasehold
improvement costs.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2015, the Group held available-for-sale investments
of approximately HK$51.8 million (2014: approximately HK$53.1
million) and held for trading investments of approximately HK$232.7
million (2014: approximately HK$98.0 million).

EAXRAX

REE-_Z—RAF+-_A=+—BILtFE
A 7K & @ 2 4 498,900,000 7T 2 B AN
T (ZZF—D4F : 494,200,000 7T) °

BAREE

RZE-—AF+A=+—H XrEEILE
ERERAE - R-_T-—NF+_A=1—
B AEENDETAEREREOE RAE
#9/32,000,0008 7T  F ZHBAWER QA
AIREEMERRENAR -

EBERKRE
RZZE—FHFE+-_A=+—8B A&EEH
A A HE % & 451,800,000 T (= F
— P04 : 953,100,000/ 7T ) R 1EX 5 1%
& #49/5232,700,000/8 T ( —F — U 4F : 4
98,000,000/ 7T ) °

Unrealised
qain (loss) Total
Realised on fair value investment
Number of shares held % of shareholding gain change Fair value % of Net Assets Dividend received cost
(‘000) (%) (HKS'000)  (HKS'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000) (%) (HK$'000)  (HKS'000)  (HKS'000)
For the For the For the For the
Asat Asat Asat Asat yearended year ended Asat Asat Asat Asat yearended  yearended Asat
31122015 31122014 31122015 31122014 31.12.2015  31.12.2015 31122015 31122014 31122015 31122014  31.12.2015 31.12.2014  31.12.2015
LPEREY
FERNE
frRHEE KRAAM BERNE (58) ATE HEEFEZAM ELEES BRERA
(TR) (%) (f&n) (f#n) (&%) (Fin) (%) (T&m) (Fén)  (T87)
Bz Bz BE K
B ® R R Z%-1f Z%-If R R ® R Z8-1f -T-RF R
g-5F “3-0F -%-RIF “3-mF 128 T2 -%-i§ -3-MF Z-%-Ef -T-MF 128 28 -%-if
TR 2R tZR TR Zt-B  Zt-H 2R 28 28 tzF =t-B =+-H tZR
Company Name/Stock Code AALE/RERE =t-8 =t-A =t-B =t+-H LEE L5 =t-8 =t-B Zt-8 =1-8 LEE EE =Zt-R
Leyou Technologies Holdings Ltd. (1089) SEREERARLA(1089)
("LTHL") (T#5]) 117,905 13,000 an 0.65 174 (29,683) 88,429 11,050 12.76 34 - - 117,505
China Minsheng Drawin Technology Group Ltd. RSk £ BARAF(726)
(726) (“CmDT") (MRER]) 63,500 - 062 - 19,293 15,398 31115 - 449 - - - 15,717
China Water Industry Group Ltd. (1129) REKEEMARAT(1129)
("Cwig") ([eEkE)) 23432 - 147 - - (760) 38,194 S 551 = - S 38,954
Co-Prosperity Holdings Ltd. (707) ("CPHL") BB BLUERERAF(07)
(ThEBE]) 64,900 S 319 S o (9.997) 17,848 S 258 - - - 21,844
Mega Expo Holdings Limited (1360) ("MEHL") ~ Mega Expo Holdings Limited
(1360) (TMEHL]) 19,000 - 158 - - 5076 19,950 - 288 - - - 14,874
Others (Note) £ (i3t) - - - - 15560 (1759 37150 86,980 536 2688 1330 405 70622
Total 5t 35,027 (47,685) 232,686 98,030 3358 30.30 1,330 405 285,516

Note: Each of these investments represented less than 5% of the total investments
amount of the Group as at 31 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LTHL is principally engaged in trading and manufacturing of chicken
meat products, animal feeds and chicken breeds, and since the second
half of 2015, it has commenced its business diversification beyond the
poultry business into the multi-media and gaming business as well.
CMDT is principally engaged in property development and investment.
CWIG is principally engaged in provision of water supply and sewage
treatment services; construction of water supply and sewage treatment
infrastructure; and exploitation and sale of renewable energy in the
PRC. CPHL is principally engaged in processing, printing and sales of
finished fabrics; and trading of fabrics and clothing, and has also been
looking to develop, among others, new businesses in the media, cultural
and entertainment industry since the last quarter of 2015. MEHL is
principally engaged in management as well as the organisation of trade
exhibitions and the provision of exhibition related services for other
exhibition organisers or project managers.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group also recognised
fair value loss on available-for-sale investments in the amount of
approximately HK$1.4 million in other comprehensive income for the
period. The Group's available-for-sale investments as at 31 December
2015 comprised of (i) listed equity investment in London at a fair value
of approximately HK$9.0 million; (ii) unlisted investment in funds at
fair value of approximately HK$35.3 million; and (iii) unlisted equity
securities in Hong Kong at cost less impairment loss, i.e. the carrying
amount of approximately HK$7.5 million.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, all financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss represented listed securities in Hong Kong. The
significant increase in unrealized fair value loss for investments held for
trading for the year ended 31 December 2015 was primarily because
in the second half of 2015, market sentiment crumbled and the Hang
Seng Index dropped significantly from its record high in recent years of
28,442.75 points in April 2015 to 21,914.40 points as at 31 December
2015 for reasons, including the extraordinary upheaval in the PRC stock
market and the pressure from the economic slowdown in the PRC and
the global economy. As at 31 December 2015, the Group recorded a net
unrealised fair value losses of approximately HK$47.7 million in respect
of investment in listed securities held for trading.

The Board acknowledges that the performance of the equities may
be affected by the degree of volatility in the Hong Kong stock market
and susceptible to other external factors that may affect their values.
Accordingly, in order to mitigate possible financial risks related to the
equities, the Board will continue to maintain a diversified investment
portfolio across various segments of the market and also closely monitor
the performance progress of its investment portfolio from time to time
going forward.
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BEENWRR DN

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

(a)

On 15 April 2015, the Group entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with an individual for the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Advance Moon Limited (currently
renamed as China Best Finance Limited) which is the holder of a
valid money lending licence under the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) at consideration of
HK$800,000. The acquisition was completed in September 2015.
Details of the aforesaid acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 April 2015.

On 20 April 2015, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with East Favor Global
Investment Limited (the “Issuer”), an independent third party.
Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the Group conditionally
agreed to subscribe for 9,608 new shares of the Issuer (the
“Subscription Shares”) at the consideration of HK$110,250,000.
The Subscription Shares represent approximately 49% of the total
issued share capital of the Issuer as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of the Subscription Shares. The Issuer is, through its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, engaged in the business of manufacturing
photovoltaic power generation system, construction, operation
and management of photovoltaic power plants in the PRC.
The subscription was completed on 11 June 2015. Details
of the aforesaid subscription are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 20 April 2015 and 11 June 2015.

On 17 December 2015, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with
Free Trans Holdings Limited (the “Purchaser”), an independent
third party. Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
the Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire and the Group
conditionally agreed to dispose of 1,100 shares in Graceful Mind
Group Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company at the
consideration of HK$10 million. The disposal was completed in
March 2016. Details of the aforesaid disposal are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 17 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material acquisition or
disposal (including the acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies) for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES AND USE OF
PROCEEDS

Save as disclosed below, the Company did not conduct any other fund
raising activities during the year.
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announcement Fund raising activities Net proceeds Intended use of proceeds Actual use of proceeds
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12 June 2015 Placing of 875,380,000  Approximately  (a) For further capital injection of approximately (a) approximately HK$131
new shares under HK$213 million  HK$131 million into Rongjinda Finance (as defined million was utilized for
general mandate at below) for the purpose of establishing a finance capital injection into
the placing price of leasing business in the PRC; and Rongjinda Finance as
HK$0.25 per share intended; and
representing a discount (b) approximately HK$82 million to be utilised for
of approximately 7.41% investment opportunities that may arise and/or ~ (b) approximately HK$82
to the closing price of general working capital. million was utilized
HK$0.27 per share as for general working
quoted on the Stock capital as intended.

Exchange as at the date
of the placing agreement
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group's monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. During
the year, there was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rates of
Hong Kong dollars and US dollars whereas Renminbi had a downward
adjustment, resulting in an exchange loss of approximately HK$14.6
million recognised as other comprehensive expenses of the Group. The
Group will take a prudent approach against any impact arising from
the fluctuation in exchange rates but currently is not engaged in any
derivative activities and not committed to any financial instruments to
hedge its balance sheet exposure.
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BEENWRE D

EMPLOYEE AND HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 51 staff (2014: 44 staff). The
total staff cost incurred for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
approximately HK$26.7 million (2014: approximately HK$11.9 million).
The remuneration of employees was determined with reference to
the qualification and experience of individual staff member, market
circumstances and the Group's performance. In accordance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function have
adequate training programmes and budget.

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted on 22 May 2012 (the
“2012 Share Option Scheme”), the Board may grant options to directors
(including non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors), employees of the Company and any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies, to subscribe for shares of the Company. During
the year, a total of 437,690,150 share option with the right to subscribe
for a total number of 437,690,150 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in
the capital of the Company were granted to the Company’s directors,
employees of the Group and its associated companies, and several
consultants under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

BUSINESS PROSPECT

The Group is principally engaged in international air and sea freight
forwarding and the provision of logistics services as well as trading
of securities and trading of fuel oil, electronic devices and other
commodities and commenced the finance leasing business and the
money lending business in the second half of 2015. The Group has
been making strategic adjustments to its principal business activities to,
among other, develop and expand its finance related businesses.

Due to the PRC government energy policy which tends to discourage
the use of coal for the purpose of pollution control and the downward
pressure of the economy of the PRC which in turn reduces the demand
for coal, the Group has been recording losses in the coal business
segment since 2013. In order to reduce operation loss and allow the
Group to engage in more profitable businesses in the future, the Group
entered into a sales and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of the coal business on 17 December 2015. Please refer
to section "MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL"” above for details.
After the completion of the disposal of the coal business, the Group has
ceased to engage in manufacture and sale of coal products.

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

After the commencement of the finance leasing business in July 2015,
considerable profit was generated to the Group from this business
segment. The Company believes that the finance leasing business
will enter into a stage of accelerated development under the current
policy support from the PRC government. This has provided a good
opportunity for the Group to focus on the development of its finance
leasing business.

In September 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of all the
shares of China Best Finance. China Best Finance holds a money lenders
licence in Hong Kong. The Group intends to leverage on China Best
Finance as the platform to actively develop the money lending business.
The Company believes that it can be competitive in the money lending
market in Hong Kong and will be able to generate returns to the Group
in the foreseeable future.

The Group intends to further develop and enhance its trading business
as one of its principal businesses as it will provide stable income to
the Group and balance the risk and return factors when the Group is
developing financial service business.

The Hong Kong and China stock markets have been in an extraordinary
upheaval and showed a weak and downward trend since the second
half of 2015. The Group has been monitoring its investment in securities
and related products closely and will act with caution in order to control
the investment risk.

There has been no significant change in the Group’s strategy and plan
in its freight forwarding business. Following the steady recovery in the
economy of North America, the freight forwarding industry was slightly
improved. However, the Group will still keep relatively conservative
approach in this segment.

Apart from existing business operation, the Group will continue to
explore investment opportunities for business development of the Group
in the financial sector. The Board is convinced that it is the fundamental
basis on which the Company generates and preserves value over
the longer term and the strategy for delivering the objectives of the
Company. The Board will closely monitor the business environment with
the aim to maximise the returns of the shareholders of the Company.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).
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BEENWR DM

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
23 May 2016 to Tuesday, 24 May 2016 (both days inclusive), during
which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify to
be shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting to be held on 24 May 2016, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 20 May 2016.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Audit Committee in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The Committee currently comprises Mr. Chan Fong Kong
Francis, Mr. Chen Zhenguo and Mr. Li Yu, the three independent non-
executive directors of the Company. A summary of duties and works of
the Audit Committee is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control
and financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor, SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE
LISTING RULES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has fully
complied with the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, with
deviation from code provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7. Details of the
Company’s corporate governance are set out in the section headed
"Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining the
Group's risk management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and for reviewing the effectiveness of such on
an annual basis under Code Provision C.2.1.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to attain and maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholders’ value and safeguard shareholders’
interests. The Group's corporate governance principles emphasize
a quality Board, effective internal control and accountability to
shareholders.

The Board believes that good corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting shareholder value
and investor confidence.

The Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out the principles of good
corporate governance (“Principles”) and two levels of corporate
governance practices:

(@) code provisions which listed issuers are expected to comply with or
to give considered reasons for any deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices for guidance only, which listed issuers
are encouraged to comply with or give considered reasons for
deviation.

The Company's corporate governance practices are based on the
principles, code provisions and certain recommended best practices as
set out in the CG Code.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code, save for
the deviations from code provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7 which are
explained in the relevant paragraphs in this report.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business and to
review its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure
they comply with the CG Code and align with the latest developments
of the Group.
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TEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company's business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All directors should
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board sets policy direction and approves strategies/operational plans
to ensure effective functioning and growth of the Company, in the
interests of all shareholders.

Every director shall ensure that he/she carries out his/her duty in
good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and acts in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including: the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board's procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the executive directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the executive directors and the senior
management to discharge its responsibility.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company and to
the exercising of independent judgment.

The Board currently comprises five executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. Members of the Board do not
have any relationship with any other director.

The list of all directors and their biographies are set out under the
section of “Corporate Information” and “Biographical Details of
Directors” on page 2 and page 35 respectively and in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. The independent non-executive directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant to
the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 and
other requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience and skills,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functions. Independent non-executive directors are invited to
serve on the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees of the
Company.
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TEERRE

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid down in the Company’s Bye-laws. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors. Details of the Nomination Committee and its
works performed during the year are set out in the “Board Committees”
section below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment.

The Board noted that code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates
that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. Although the non-executive directors are not
appointed for a specific term as provided under code provision A.4.1 of
the CG Code, pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation once every three years
and eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting, and any new
director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself for re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
The Board believes that the procedures of retirement by rotation as
required by the Company's Bye-laws have already provided sufficient
safeguard to ensure the independence and tenure of the independent
non-executive directors.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Pursuant to requirement in Code provision A.6.1, each newly appointed
director receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on the first occasion of his appointment, so as to ensure that he
has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.
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The Board recognises the importance of directors’ training and all

directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, all directors have participate in continuous
professional development by attending training courses and/or reference
materials on the topics related to corporate governance and regulations:

TEERWE

EERRBIEFHICERE B2
ENASERBRERRR UERNEHK
EMABLERE-BE_T-—HAF+ A
=+—BLEFE MEEFHEER2 MR
SRBBEREEERREE 2EIIRE
R/ S EFEEEE:

Attending expert
briefings/seminars/
conferences
relevant to the

Reading Regulatory business or
Updates director’s duties
HEEHERRES
MEEEATE BENERERE
ZERHER mHe g3
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tan Xiangdong (Chairman) BRAREE (FE) (RZF—8F 4 v
(Appointed on 22 May 2015) AA-F+-HEZ(T)
Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman) FHxE (FFE) v 4
Mr. Li Xiaolong (Chief Executive Officer) FREELL (fTHAE) v v
(Resigned on 10 August 2015) (R=ZF—7%F/\f+HEFF)
Mr. Wang Jian it v v
Mr. Liu Wei BBRE (R=ZF—NF Not Applicable Not Applicable
(Appointed on 3 February 2016) ZHA=HEZF) TE A NE M
Mr. Chen Wei REXE (RZE—NF Not Applicable Not Applicable
(Appointed on 3 February 2016) ZHAZHEZF) TEMA ~EHR
Mr. Yin Shibo FHEREE (R-_F—2F v v
(Resigned on 5 June 2015) NAFHEF)
Mr. Tang Hon Kwo HERELE (R=ZF—FF 4 v
(Resigned on 5 June 2015) NALHAFE)
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Kuk Peter Z EEE (RZE—HF 4 v
(Resigned on 20 May 2015) AAZFHEE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYkHTES
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis PR 77 Wl 5% & v v
Mr. Chen Zhenguo PR 4 B 5 A 4 v
Mr. Li Yu FEAE(R-F—ZF v v
(Appointed on 26 June 2015) NAZFNAEZE)
Mr. Yuan Guangming RIALE (R=ZF—AF v 4

(Resigned on 26 June 2015)

NAZ1XHABE)

EEFEZRERAR 2015F#H
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TEERRE

MEETINGS
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year, regular Board meetings were held for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Most important resolutions agreed in Board meetings were made by
all directors including both executive and independent non-executive
directors.

As matters relating to identifying and managing business risks faced by
the Group’s business operation had been discussed and dealt with in
regular Board meetings as well as in meetings of Audit Committee, no
Risk Management Committee meeting was held for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The attendance records of each director at the meetings of the
shareholders, the Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee during the year are set out
below:

28
ESBFHEELELH

FR-EFZREHETHITEHR AR Lt
EARRB B REERE W EE LA E
ARBZEBEREIER -EFZREELE
EXHREBRFHEHAZBES (BREHT
RBIIFATES)(EL -

MR ARERN R EEANEE 2 X2 EME
X BERcFRENEHNEETRE R
MEGFZEEEZ LA WARE RERE
BEZEERBE_T—AFT_A=1+—
HIEFETEBITER -

FA-BEEERERAE EFR FZ
Be FHEEeREAZECTER
AL FREMT

Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend

BiliE/RERLEZEHE
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Directors Shareholders Board Committee Committee Committee
Exps BRER R EitZz8¢ FMzEe REZEE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Tan Xiangdong (Chairman) ~ERR%% (£/E) Not Applicable 15/15  Not Applicable ~ Not Applicable  Not Applicable
(Appointed on 22 May 2015)  (R-F—F% THEAB TiE T THEA
FA-+-HEZ()
Mr. Ui Yang (Deputy Chairman) — ZW5%4% (£ /) 11 18/19  Not Applicable 4/4 33
TR
Mr. Li Xiaolong TRERE (7THEE) 1/1 9/10  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable
(Chief Executive Officer) (R=ZZF—F2F/1H+H TEA A A
(Resigned on 10 August 2015)  F#(E)
Mr. Wang Jian FREE " 19/19  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable
TiER A A
Mr. Liu Wei (Appointed on 2BRE(R=F— %  NotApplicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable ~ Not Applicable  Not Applicable
3 February 2016) —HA=HEZF) A A TR Enili A
Mr. Chen Wei (Appointed on ~ FRIE%4E (R=F—7Y%  Not Applicable ~ Not Applicable  Not Applicable ~ Not Applicable  Not Applicable
3 February 2016) ZHA=HEZF) A A TiEH A A
Mr. Yin Shibo FUEREE (R=F—FHF 11 4/4  Not Applicable 212 22
(Resigned on 5 June 2015) NABAFE) TER
Mr. Tang Hon Kwo HERELE (R-F—F%F n 2/4  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable
(Resigned on 5 June 2015) NAFAEHE) TEA TEA NiEA
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TEERB|E

Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend

BHE/RERLEEZER
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Name of Directors Shareholders Board Committee Committee Committee
g B3R xR EHEEE FMzag REZEE
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Kuk Peter Z HELE (R-F—F%  NotApplicable 3/3  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable

(Resigned on 20 May 2015) AAZTHFE) A TiER TER THEB
Independent Non-Executive BIFHTES

Directors
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis BRI A 11 19/19 212 4/4 33
Mr. Chen Zhenguo RIRE %4 7 18/19 22 4/4 33
Mr. Li Yu (Appointed on FEEE(RZF—AF  NotApplicable 12/12 171 1/1 Not Applicable

26 June 2015) NAZFANAEE(F) TEA TER
Mr. Yuan Guangming RAREE (R=F—2F Al 5/5 11 11 1

(Resigned on 26 June 2015)  ~A=+NHET)

Under Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Due to his work commitments, one independent non-
executive director was unable to attend the annual general meeting held
on 22 May 2015.

RIEEE TR Z FRMEXEA6.71& B3k
WITEERHMIERTESREERREAS
MHBRNEREAEN TR - — 2B 3F
WITEZAHETEREELIHENR _Z—1
FRA-Z+-BABTZBREREFRE-
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TEERRE

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Chairman and the Company Secretary attend almost all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable period of
time after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’
inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting.

The Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring directors to
abstain from voting (nor be counted in the quorum) at meetings for
approving transactions in which such directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set out
in writing. Mr. Kuk Peter Z was the Chairman of the Board during the
period from 1 January 2015 to 20 May 2015. Since 22 May 2015, Mr.
Tan Xiangdong has been appointed as the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Li Xiaolong was the chief executive officer during the period from
1 January 2015 to 10 August 2015. Upon the resignation of Mr. Li
Xiaolong, position of the chief executive officer was vacant as the
Board has not identified a suitable candidate to fill this casual vacancy.
However, the Board believed that the existing structure together with
the extensive experience of the Board was conducive to strong and
consistent leadership, enabling the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and efficiently.

The role of the Chairman was performed by Mr. Tan Xiangdong, who
provided leadership for the Board and was responsible for chairing
meetings, managing the operations of the Board and ensuring that all
major and appropriate issues were discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner. He was also responsible for the strategic
management of the Group and for formulating the Group’s overall
corporate direction and focus.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Risk Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company's affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. Save for the Risk
Management Committee, the terms of reference of the other Board
committees are made available to shareholders on the websites of
the Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(http://www.cbgroup.com.hk) respectively.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company'’s expenses.
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TEERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the following independent non-

executive directors.

From

1 January 2015 to
26 June 2015

=r
=

Bt E
B LB R TBIIERITE

)I]]]I]

B

From
26 June 2015 to
date of this report

From
1 January 2015 to
date of this report

HM-ZE—RF
—HA—H H=-Z—1H H-F—HF
E-E—-®fF F—HA—H AHB=+AXxH
AAB=+XH EXRFEAH EAXR{EBAH
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis bR 75 N 45 A v
Mr. Chen Zhenguo PR % B 5 A 4
Mr. Li Yu FERE v
Mr. Yuan Guangming RHAXPLE v

Among the committee members,

one of them possesses the

appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. None of the members of the Audit Committee is

a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the staff of the Company’s

accounting and financial reporting function,
any) or external auditors before submission to the Board;

internal auditor (if

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms
of engagement, their independence and objectivity, and make

recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment

and removal of external auditors; and

() To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's

financial reporting system,
management system and associated procedures.
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TEERB|E

FR-BAHAREEHBITMREH  UEHM

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year to review the
half-yearly and annual financial results and reports, financial reporting
and compliance procedures, report on the Company’s internal control
and risk management review and processes and the re-appointment of
the external auditors.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee are set out under the
section “Meetings” in this report.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2015
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises the following directors.

FEREFMBEERRS
REeRBRF BEARRZ AT R AR
EIEME MR 2 HE AR B INE R B

B o

B REGCHRELHERAREZ (€3
—ER

o

B ZEECBHARABE_T—1F

i & B 7% ER ¥R

TZA=+T—"BUEFEZEFRE-

REZEE
REEERE T EEMEM -

From From From From
1 January 1 January 1 January 26 June
2015 to 2015 to 2015 to date 2015 to date
5 June 2015 26 June 2015  of this report  of this report
M-E-1F @H-E-IF
—A—H —B—B H®WIT-1F HIE-IF
E-E-If E-¥-IF —A—B RXAZ=tRXA
~HAER ARAZ=+RH EARERH EARERH
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Yang =Gkt v
Mr. Yin Shibo FHREE v
Independent Non-Executive BIFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis [R5 [l 5E 4 v
Mr. Chen Zhenguo PR ¥R B 5% A v
Mr. Li Yu FEREE 4
Mr. Yuan Guangming RIALE 4
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TEERRE

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

e To review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations regarding any proposed changes;

e  To develop and formulate relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors and senior management;

e  To identify suitable candidates for appointment as directors and
senior management;

e To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
reappointment of and succession planning for directors and senior
management; and

e To assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships and senior management
by making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry
out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the year to
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
and made recommendations to the Board in accordance with the
Nomination Committee’s written terms of reference. The Nomination
Committee considers that board appointments are based on merit and
candidates are considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

In accordance with the clause 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Liu Wei and Mr. Chen Wei will be subject to the re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with clause 87(1) of the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. Chan
Fong Kong Francis and Mr. Chen Zhenguo shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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TEEBRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises the following directors.

TMEES
HMEE G T EEMEM -

From From From From
1 January 1 January 1 January 26 June
2015 to 2015 to 2015 to date 2015 to date
5 June 2015 26 June 2015  of this report  of this report
M-F-EF HW-¥-EF
—A—H —B—B H®WIT-1F HIE-IF
E-E-FF —E-1F —A—H AB=+XH
AAER SAZ+TARB  EXEEAH  EXEEEH
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Yang =Gkt v
Mr. Yin Shibo FHREE v
Independent Non-Executive BIFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis B 75 [l 5L 4 v
Mr. Chen Zhenguo PR ¥R B 5% A v
Mr. Li Yu FEREL 4
Mr. Yuan Guangming RIALE 4

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or
any of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the individual
performance and the operating results of the Company as well as the
market conditions and practice.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination or making
recommendation of the annual remuneration packages of the executive
directors and the senior management and other related matters
when needs arise. The Human Resources Division is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the
Board about these recommendations on remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages.
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The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the year
to review the remuneration packages of the directors and the senior
management and made recommendation to the Board in accordance
with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 as required to be disclosed pursuant to

Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 13(a) to the
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consolidated financial statements. RMFFE13() °
The remuneration of the senior management for the years ended 31 HZE-_ZE—FHFN_T—NF+_A=+—
December 2015 and 2014 are set out in note 13(b) to the consolidated HIFEE 5/ E fiﬁ’] £ B S 1 A R A B
financial statements. TEHRE M FE13(D) °
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REEEZEES
The Risk Management Committee comprises the following directors. EREEEE@h NHESHK-
From From From From
1 January 1 January 1 January 26 June
2015 to 2015 to 2015 to date 2015 to date
5June 2015 26 June 2015  of this report  of this report
H=Z—-8% H=Z-51F
—RA—H —H—H H=-ZE-—-AF H=Z—-1F
E-E-1F EZZ-IF —A—H ~NB=t+XH
~HAEH AAZ+XAH EARERH ERAREAH
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Li Yang L4 v
Mr. Yin Shibo FEREE v
Independent Non-Executive BIFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis [R5l 4L 4 4
Mr. Chen Zhenguo PRI B 5% A v
Mr. Li Yu FEREL 4
Mr. Yuan Guangming RAALE v

The Risk Management Committee primarily focuses on raising the level
of management awareness of, and accountability for the business risks
faced by the Group's business operations. In meeting its responsibilities,
the Risk Management Committee seeks to put in place policies and
procedures to provide a framework for identification and management
of risks.
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The Risk Management Committee normally meets for prioritizing and
accelerating those risk management strategies that are critical to the
advancement of the Group’s objectives and ensuring that sufficient
resources and appropriate level of support from the management are
allocated. The Risk Management Committee shall consult the Chairman
and/or the senior management of the Company about the effectiveness
of their recommendations and report to the Board any risks relating to
material transactions in the ordinary course of business and unusual
transactions beyond the scope of the principal business activities of the
Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out in the terms of reference equivalent to Code Provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the year, the policies of the corporate
governance of the Company were reviewed by the Board in the Board
meetings.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made on all directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial
statements give a true and fair view and that relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The management of the Company provides such explanation and
information to the Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of the Company
which were put to the Board for approval.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 51.

An analysis of the remuneration of the Company’s auditors, SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited, for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out as
follows:

S B 4% B

BREARBINEZBEME R E AR S B
BRZABBEMFHNBAFNESR
Z BB HRE] -

BE_Z—RAF+_A=+—"HBItFE K
NAZEBEEKP R (FE) SAMEHAT
BRABMEMSMN DTSN T

Fee paid/
payable

for services
rendered
iRt
BRRKEN
ERAHNEAR
HK$'000

FHET

ZBURTS
T HIE B AR T
HARIR T

Audit services
Interim review services
Other ad-hoc assignments

INTERNAL CONTROLS

Under Code Provision C.2.1, the Board is responsible for maintaining an
adequate internal control system to safeguard shareholders’ investments
and the Company's assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of such on
an annual basis.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the
Group.

During the year, the Board and the Audit Committee had discussed and
reviewed the internal control system and the relevant proposal made by
senior management in order to ensure an adequate and effective system
of internal control. The Board believes that the existing internal control
system is adequate and effective.
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The key elements of the Group’s internal control system include the
following:

o the organizational structure is clearly defined with distinct lines of
authority and control responsibilities;

o a comprehensive financial accounting system has been established
to provide for performance measurement indicators and to ensure
compliance with relevant rules;

o the senior management shall prepare annual plans on financial
reporting, operations and compliance aspects by reference to
potential significant risks;

o unauthorized expenditures and release of confidential information
are strictly prohibited;

e  specific approval by executive director prior to commitment is
required for all material matters; and

o the management shall review and evaluate the control process and
monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances
and identified risks.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The position of the Company Secretary is held by Mr. Ho Yu. He is
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. The Company Secretary reported to the
Chairman of the Board from time to time. All Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that
board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed. During the year, Mr. Ho undertook not less than 15 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Group also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables shareholders and investors to make
a properly informed investment decision.
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The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. Investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for any
inquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.cbgroup.com.hk, where extensive information and updates
on the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

The Board confirmed that, during the year, there were no significant
changes made to the Company’s Bye-laws affecting its operations and
reporting practices.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, the Board, on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company holding not less than 10% of the paid-
up capital of the Company by sending a written notice to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, shall convene a special general meeting to address specific
issues of the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of
written notice. The same requirement and procedure also applies to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention can be
sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with its shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered shareholders
of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out in the notice of
general meeting. A proxy form for use at a general meeting is enclosed
with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend or are unable to be
present at the meeting should fill out the form and return the same to
the share registrar and transfer office of the Company, so as to appoint
a representative, another shareholder or the chairman of the meeting as
their proxy.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Tan Xiangdong (Chairman), aged 61, received a doctorate
degree in economics in Xiamen University in 1998, a master’'s degree
in economics of Southwestern University of Finance and Economics ( 78
BT KE) in 1996 and a bachelor’s degree in economics in Hunan
University of Finance and Economics (G#RI B 48 E2B ) in 1982. He is
the Senior Economist in the Peoples’ Republic of China (the “PRC"). He
served at various positions in Industry and Commercial Bank of China
(B TrER7T) during 1985 to 1995 and was the deputy general
manager of Trust Investment Company of the Head Office of ICBC (1
B TR 7487715 5E & A ")) before his leaving. Afterwards, he was
the general manager of Beijing Securities Co., Ltd. (It B HBRE
{£72 7)) until 1997. From 1992 to 1996, he was the executive council
member of Securities Association of China (FFEIZES ¥ E) . He
was appointed as the director of Shenzhen Stock Exchange (& 3IIIFE
#Z 5 Fr) from 1995 to 2005, the deputy general manager in United
Securities Co., Ltd. (B & FEHFEBREEAF) from 1997 to 2001, the
chairman of Baoying Fund Management Co., Ltd. (BERESEEER
A A]) from 2001 to 2004, the chairman of City International Trust and
Investment Company (3 B2 {S5E#% & 2 &) from 2004 to 2008, and
the chairman and chief executive officer in National West Development
Industries Fund Management Co., Ltd. (AXRALEREXEESETR
BRAR]) from 2008 to 2014. From 2008 to 2012, he was also the
chairman of Welichen Biotech Inc. of which shares are listed on TSX
Venture Exchange in Canada. Mr. Tan was the independent director of
Mirae Asset Management Co., Ltd. (R KRRESE A F]) from July
2012 to May 2015.

Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman), aged 44, obtained a junior college
degree of Electronic Engineering from Shenzhen University. He
completed an EMBA programme and obtained his EMBA from Shenzhen
Mr. Li
also completed a master degree programme of the Graduate School
of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (Bt & Bl BRI ERT) ,
majoring in World Economics. Mr. Li has approximately 20 years of
experience in investment activities and business management. Mr. Li
has been a director of Brand Marvel Worldwide Consumer Products

College of Economics and Management (7 3I| 4% % & 18 £33 ) .

Corporation (TSXV symbol: BMW), a Canadian publicly traded company
on the TSX Venture Exchange since December 2010. He is currently
also assuming senior executive positions in several capital investment
or management companies. Since 6 July 2015, Mr. Li has been
appointed as the Chairman and director of Guanghe Landscape Culture
Communication Co., Ltd., Shanxi* (1L 78 E M LKL EERGBR A
A]) shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 600234).

EEBEFR

HITESE

BAREAE (FE) 615 R—AAANE
EREMABLE2FE L2 R— AR
FTESHEILRSBEESE TSN K
R—NAN—_FESHEMLEERKEESE
TEMN-FAPEAREME([FEDS
BEER-B—NAMNEFE—NLEF #
PR TR RITETZ @B BT AT iE
PR IHRITRITEIREQATIBLE
Bl B EETLRESFEREAA
RREE HE—NAhtF-B8— L&
E—NANAF FATHEELFEHTEBRE
E-B-NMNAFE-_ZTZTHFE KREZT
BERYNEHZRSGMEEZ - B—AALEFERE
—ET—FABMEEFERETAAEE
R\ BT FE _ERNFEABTRE
CEBERARER BZTETWFET
ENFEARTREBERARERRERERLE
TEENFE_T-NFAERALERE
EXESEBEARAREFRITHAEH - A
—EENEFEE-ZT——F % IrAWelichen
Biotech Inc. (AR A IMERTXRIER 5
FrEmEF-BAEEB T ——F+A=
—TE—RAFRAAARERANRESERRQA
HBYESE-

MG RE (FEE) 4455 BB FRIIKE
BEFIRERBR - BRI EERE
TEAEREABIEERELRIBL G
SRERBABINEREEERFE T A4
e Pt ER B ERE T2
IR EBEHREE - FTAEERKREFTH R
XBEBETEBEBA0F Y=LK -8 =
T—2F+ = A =54 ABrand Marvel
Worldwide Consumer Products Corporation
(TSXVAL SR : BMW - — R RATSXBI X R H F
LEHZMERARDNEEZ -KBAMNTRE
REKRREREIR N RIEESARITHERAL -
BE-E—AF+tANAR FTLEERE
EABROR EEBEAR S EMZILARE
ALK AL EFHER D BR A A (AR5 :
600234) 2 EfEFRES -

BZEEEZERERADA 201558

35



36

Biographical Details of Directors
EEBREFE

Mr. Wang Jian, aged 41, graduated from the department of fine art of
Beijing Normal University. Mr. Wang worked at a renowned automobile
company in the PRC from 1994 t01997. From 2009 to 2012, Mr. Wang
co-found an iron and steel product company in Shenzhen and served
as its legal representative. Since 2012, he has assumed management
positions at several natural resources related companies. He has a
number of years of experience in investment activities and business
management.

Mr. Liu Wei, aged 43, graduated from Renmin University of China (1
B ARKZ) in 1996 with a degree in economics and further completed
postgraduate course in international economics from Renmin University
of China (B ARAKZ) in 2000. From 1996 to 2014, Mr. Liu worked
in various roles at Bank of Communications, Beijing Branch ( 3@ $R171t
WM 17) including as a manager at the international trade department
and the credit department, the head of the investment banking division
of Beijing Branch, and the manager of a sub-branch. During Mr. Liu's
tenure at Bank of Communications, Mr. Liu was mainly involved in
international trade settlement, local and foreign currencies loans,
personal, corporate and inter-bank financing and investment banking
businesses, and was a committee member of Beijing branch’s credit
committee and innovation business committee. Since June 2014, Mr. Liu
has been with Zhongrong International Trust Co., Ltd* (R B EBR{Z 5T
B2 7A]) (“Zhongrong Trust”) as executive president in charge of its
trust investment department, with responsibilities involving alternative
asset management, merger and restructuring in capital markets, sector-
specific funds, asset securitizations, structuring financing and other
businesses.

Mr. Chen Wei, aged 35, graduated from Yunnan University (£ X
2) with a degree in law in 2002 and further obtained a master degree
in law from Peking University (3t 32 K28) in 2012. Mr. Chen obtained
his PRC law qualification in 2001 and further obtained his PRC Certified
Public Accountants qualification in 2012. From 2002 to 2004, Mr.
Chen worked as a legal counsel at a state-owned enterprise located in
Hangzhou. From 2004 to 2012, Mr. Chen worked as a lawyer at a law
firm located in Beijing and was mainly involved in corporate legal affairs
and litigation matters. Since 2012, Mr. Chen has been with Zhongrong
Trust as the vice general manager of the trust investment department
and is mainly responsible for project investment and management. Mr.
Chen is the sole director of Sungi Global Investment Co., Ltd, which
holds 200,000,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately
2.75% of the total issued share capital of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis, aged 40, obtained a Bachelor degree
of Commerce, majoring in Accounting and, Finance, from Deakin
University. Mr. Chan has more than 10 years of experience in capital
investment, assurance and consultancy services industry. He served
as a senior in assurance and advisory service team in a renowned
international accounting firm from 2001 to 2005. Since 2005, Mr.
Chan has been a senior consultant at a local consultancy firm in which
apart from business consultancy services, he also involved in corporate
restructuring and fund raising activities in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Chan attained the Certified Practising Accountant status with CPA
Australia and is currently a director of New Territories General Chamber
of Commerce. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1089) during
the period from January 2015 to July 2015. Mr. Chan has also been
an independent non-executive director of e-Kong Group Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
524) since June 2015.

Mr. Chen Zhenguo, aged 45, obtained his bachelor degree in finance
and insurance from China Institute of Finance and Banking (R E &
AEEBE ) in July 1993. He has approximately 17 years of experience
in investment activities and business management. Mr. Chen was the
project manager (investment banking) of United Securities Co., Ltd.
(B A EHBRRQA) between April 1997 and February 2006. He
joined Cybernaut Investment Limited (Z{H%435% & R A 7)) between
March 2006 and July 2008 as its vice president (investment). Since
August 2008, Mr. Chen has been the executive director (investment) of
Shanghai Fosun Venture Capital Investment Management Co., Ltd. (_E
BEEAIEREEE B AR, its parent company Fosun International
Limited was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
0656).

Mr. Li Yu, aged 43, graduated from the department of Chinese
linguistics of Xuzhou Normal University (4R /MEREAE:) in 1996. Mr.
Li had been working as a journalist and editor in various multi-media
institutions and companies. From 2007 to 2012, Mr. Li served as the
deputy general manager in Guangzhou Jiadi Culture Communication
Co., Ltd. (BM{ES X EEER A R]) . Subsequently, Mr. Li focused
on participating in social cultural development and investment
management business. Mr. Li has extensive experience in corporate
culture development, brand promotion as well as corporate sales and
marketing management.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 53 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares (the “Shares”) during the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, in the opinion of the directors, the Company
had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders (2014: Nil).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tan Xiangdong (Chairman)
(Appointed on 22 May 2015)

Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Li Xiaolong (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on 10 August 2015)

Mr. Wang Jian

Mr. Liu Wei (Appointed on 3 February 2016)

Mr. Chen Wei (Appointed on 3 February 2016)

Mr. Yin Shibo (Resigned on 5 June 2015)

Mr. Tang Hon Kwo (Resigned on 5 June 2015)
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kuk Peter Z (Resigned on 20 May 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis
Mr. Chen Zhenguo
Mr. Li Yu (Appointed on 26 June 2015)

Mr. Yuan Guangming (Resigned on 26 June 2015)

In accordance with the clause 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Liu Wei and Mr. Chen Wei will be subject to the re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with clause 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Chan
Fong Kong Francis and Mr. Chen Zhenguo shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and eligible, will offer themselves for re-election

at the annual general meeting.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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The term of office of each independent non-executive director is
the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are still independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives and their associates in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were
as follows:

Long position in share options of the Company

EEBUFNTEFZETHRNERBAD
BlZ ARIARI R ESREEW-

RARAREWRBBEBBILIFATEERE L
MARRNEINERE BT 2 FE
R ARARBERBUIFNTESE
B AL

EERFTETHRABZRNER
ERBHHPzZAR

R-ZE—hAF+-_A=+-—H EFERTE
ITBHABURBEECHEALREARARR
HRESEE 2 i RAEERGD T - AR
RARQNBRIEZFLBEERD ([FH K
BBl ) E352FE 2 B M=RiE EH
RAEFETESFRINZETAANE
KRB RBRFIzEERABIT

RAEDABREZGFAE

Percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of Director Capacity Interest in shares of the Company
ERARE BT

EEnR 56 R 13 #E & RAEB DL

Mr. Tan Xiangdong Benefit Owner 37,000,000 0.70%

BRI & EniEA

Mr. Li Yang Benefit Owner 10,034,030 0.19%

FGEE EREAA

Mr. Wang Jian Benefit Owner 8,034,030 0.15%

FREE EREAA

Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis Benefit Owner 5,240,000 0.10%

BR 75 [l 52 42 EniEA

Mr. Chen Zhenguo Benefit Owner 5,240,000 0.10%

R ¥R B9 o A EREAA

Mr. Li Yu Benefit Owner 5,240,000 0.10%

FREE EREAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the directors
and chief executives, nor their associates, had any interests or short
positions in any shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations.
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SHARE OPTIONS
(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme"”) was
adopted by the Company on 18 March 2002. The 2002 Share
Option Scheme expired on 17 March 2012. Upon the expiry of the
2002 Share Option Scheme, no further options would be granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme but the options granted
prior to such expiry continued to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the provisions of the 2002 Share Option Scheme.
Particulars of the 2002 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements.
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() —EZ_FBRETE

AAARZBREZ A\ BES
BB ([ = FF — 4 @Rt
B)) T EBREGEN-T
——EZATEAEHHF-FTT A
W SRR - AL T AR
— BT BRI BEERE 1
R BB R 2 BB A
WRTRE - FE  FBREH B0
BT » =B IR B 3
BHUR G & BB RN EE34 -

The following table discloses movements of the share options TREE_ZT_FHEREFEITE
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year: B R F W Z x@J :
Exercise
price after Surrendered/
Exercise Adj 0 di Adj N Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
price before made on asat made on during during during as at
Date of grant Exercisable period Adjustments* 15.1.2015 1.1.2015 15.1.2015 the year the year the year 31.12.2015
W=B-1F
-AtER RZB-1% RNIZ-IF RZZ-1F
iz -A-H -AtEA Fh t=B=1-8
R AA ES BREHTEE BERORE HRTE  fFHzRE FRRE ERfTE RE/KE AT
Other eligible persons ~ 26.9.2005 26.9.2005 t0 25.9.2015 0.3695 0.3396 67,649,498 5,946,391 - - (73,595,889) -
HibaEBAL “ERRFAACTARE ZERREARZTRAZE
“Z-RFAAZTER
20.8.2007 20.8.2007 t0 20.8.2017 0.6275 0.5768 27,194,648 2,390,410 - - - 29,585,058
ZEREEN\AZTH
7.9.2007 7.9.2007 t0 7.9.2017 0.6850 0.6297 13,484,949 1,185,327 - - - 14,670,276
“EREFNALH ZERLEAALAEE
“T-+FNALH
28.9.2007 28.9.2007 to 28.9.2017 0.7385 0.6788 4,494,983 395,109 - - - 4,890,092
“RREEARACH\R ZETHEAACTARE
ZE-tFNAZTAR
Total 112,824,078 9,917,237 - - (73,595,889) 49,145,426
@t
& Following the completion of the open offer of the Company on 15 January e ARAZARABER_TE—AF—ATH

2015, the exercise prices of the share options and the number of shares
falling to be issued under the outstanding share options were adjusted.
Please refer to paragraph (c) below for reference.

HSem & BB 2 1T B RABIRARTTERS
RIS TRITZBRNBECEAE -F2H
TX (BN IESE -
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(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme

The 2012 Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolution on 22 May 2012 (the "Effective Date”). The purposes of
the 2012 Share Option Scheme are to attract and retain the best
available personnel and to provide additional incentives or rewards
to employees, directors, consultants, business associates and
advisers of the Company for their contribution to the Company
and to promote our success. The 2012 Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing on the
Effective Date. The terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are in
compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Eligible participants of the 2012 Share Option Scheme include the
following persons:

(a) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or
part time) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest;

(b) any directors, non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds any equity interest;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest;

(d) any customer of the Group or any of entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds any equity interest;

(f) any shareholder of or holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any entity in which any member of
the Group holds any equity interest;

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015

(b) —E——-FEKRETS

T FREREAOIRE T =
FRA-T-RA(TEMBEH])BBN
REREN - —T—_FHERENEE
ERERREREAT  UARA/EART
BE EF HAA EBBHNERM
R BRER  UBERFHA
REBRAKNAENER - —F— %
BRRERTE B AU A BRI T FHA
BIREBRAR - —T— —FRRE
SRR TALMRAUFI7TEZHIR
e

—E-_FEREFINAERS A
EBREATAL:

(@) ARF BEMMHBARKAEE
ERKERAFAEREZEME
BzEMEESREREE (TwE
PREIRBESR)

(b) ARF BEEAMBARRAEE
ERKERAFAEREZEME
BoEMES FATES (1
BIUFWTES) :

(0 AKEITMKERAHANKET
MK B RAIFAEREZEAER
ZAEE m ek R A e

d) AEEHIAREEEFAKE RFHF
BEREZEAERZEFNETFS:

(e) MAKEHAEEEMAMKE QT
FBEBREZ EMERIEHTT
By HMEMSEZEMALH

e .

i}
k

0/

\

) AEETMKERAHARKET
MK B RAIFAEREZEAER
ZAERBRR R ERBMETE
A2 EFFHEA



(g) any other group or classes of persons or entities from time to
time determined by the Board as having contributed or may
contribute to by way of joint venture, business alliances or
other business arrangements to the development and growth
of the Group; and

(h) any company wholly owned by one or more person belonging
to any of the above (a) to (g) participants.

The total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the Effective Date (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”) or the date of refreshing the Scheme
Mandate Limit approved by shareholders of the Company in
general meeting. The maximum number of shares issuable upon
exercise of the options which may be granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
participant (other than a substantial shareholder, chief executive
or director as explained below) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a connected person (as defined under
the Listing Rules), are subject to approval by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the
options). Where any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their respective associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) would result in the Company’s shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person(s) in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant (a) representing in aggregate over 0.10 per cent
of the Company’s shares in issue; and (b) having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of
options is subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company
in compliance with the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Report
EERHE

(9 EFERTHRRBURE EBKE
HEMEELRB T AH AL EHE
REERBERMIAERRERZ
TREBEEHBER ZALHE

gk

(hy BRLi(a=(gBr2EERRZ
ER—BHAEALTZEREZ
(R CIPNCIE

R-F-—_FRREFSRAKET
I EM B ARSI T AT HBEITHAR
AR AR AR TRBBARANE
MEH ([FH8&FE LR RARFR
RRBIRAE LT TR E L
[REMMI0%EBRTRA - FRE-F
——FBERE I RAREEAEBE
PRt EI M RER M ERE (BEETT
0 BORTT R RB AR ) BT 1R - AT ME
A+ —EAAPRARS2EE (T2
TERR TETRAERES RE
HN IO BRTHRMDEBE LR T
BEARRTKHNERHTROBAE W
1% - MBERIMZH BB ERAOBK
- RZESHBRNERRAS L1t

WMmEAEAT (EER LWHI)FL
B NERAQRBYIERNITES
(TEEAGABREARAZEME
VIRTES) ) E-MRAARAFEE
RERIBULUFATESTIEMNEES
ABHMEAL(EER LWHRADEDY
BRE  BERREER LA LRD
BhEZR (2EZB) ET @A
MR BITFEERTRERTRALTZ
2 ERE (BEETE B R
RITEZBERE) MBETRETETZ
KARRM ()G HEBBARR AL FHT
B520.10% : R (b)iE& &L ERER
Bz ARRRHWMEE  BEBB
5,000,000/ 7T ; Rl B8 /N ) B P i —
ENVAEARRNRREIE  LFEET
RAIZHE -

BESEZERBRAA 201563k

43



Directors’ Report
EERERE

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in writing by
a participant within 21 days from the date of offer upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise
period for the share options granted is determined by the Board,
which period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of
offer.

The amount payable of each share to be subscribed for under
an option in the event of the option being exercised shall be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and must be at
least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant (which
must be a business day);

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

The following table discloses movements of the share options

SRENREBHARET —_+—HA
NEmA A RRERBRENELD &
BRAEREARBMIBTRERE:
E#ﬁ%k*%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%%?m'
HITEHNEEEROAMET+5-

i 5 17 {65 28 P 4 1 AR 9 B A 78 T 3R
BOESREONENEE BARESS
EREMNBEE BTBLRUAT=E&+
MEEE

(i) MORBEREREBRHR (KEAE
%E)W%Q%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁz
W E

(i BHOREZERERLDBHITR
AEZEBARBIMSAREREN
WFHWmE: &

(i) BRHBMEE-

TREBE T —_FBREFITH

under the 2012 Share Option Scheme during the year: REERNER S :
Exercise
price after
Exercise Adjustments* Adjustments* Granted Exercised
price before made on Outstanding as made on during during Lapsed during Outstanding as
Date of grant Exercisable period Adjustments* 15.1.2015 at 1.1.2015 15.1.2015 the year the year the year at 31.12.2015
R-2-1%
-AtER R-%-EF R-F-I% R-Z2-1F
itz -B-8 -AtER +=A=1+-H
BHAH & BEATHEE AEAOTHER HARTE  fFHZBE FRRE FRTE FAHE/ AN HATE
Directors 3.11.2014 3N 2014 102.11.2015 0.30 0.2758 145,800,000 12,815,820 S - (158,615,820 S
f3 ZE-WET-AZH —F-mE+-AZAE
:2 nE+-AzH
17.7.2015 17.7.2015 10 16.7.2018 030  Not applicable - - 80,822,090 - (10,034,030) 70,788,060
ZE-RFtA+tA ZE-RELATLEE TEA
ZE-NFLATRA
Employees 3.11.2014 3.11.2014 10 2.11.2015 0.30 0.2758 97,200,000 8,543,880 - (12,200,000)  (93,543,880) -
B8 —I-mE+-f=A —F-ME+-A=RZ
“E-RFT-AZH
17.7.2015 17.7.2015t0 16.7.2018 0.30  Not applicable - - 218,868,060 - (28,034,030) 190,834,030
ZE-RFtATHH ZE-RETATHEE TER
ZE-\FtAT/A
Consultants 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 10 16.7.2018 030  Not applicable - - 138,000,000 - - 138,000,000
B ZZ-AFtAttA ZE-RELATLHEE TEA
ZE-N\FtATRA
Total 243,000,000 21,359,700 437,690,150 (12,200,000)  (290,227,760) 399,622,090
st
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e Following the completion of the open offer of the Company on 15 January
2015, the exercise prices of the share options and the number of shares
falling to be issued under the outstanding share options were adjusted.

Please refer to paragraph (c) below for reference.

(c) Adjustments on outstanding share options
granted under 2002 Share Option Scheme and
2012 Share Option Scheme

On 10 November 2014, the Company announced that it proposed
to raise not less than approximately HK$218.85 million and not
more than approximately HK$245.54 million before expenses by
issuing not less than 1,458,995,422 offer shares and not more
than 1,636,907,461 offer shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.15 per offer share on the basis of one (1) offer share for
every two (2) existing shares held on the record date and payable
in full upon application.

As a result of the completion of the open offer, adjustments were
made to the exercise prices of the share options and the number
of shares falling to be issued under the outstanding share options
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share
Option Scheme pursuant to their terms. The adjustments to the
exercise prices and the number of the shares falling to be issued
under the outstanding share options have taken effect from 15
January 2015, the date on which the open offer was completed
(the "Adjustments”).

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the

following persons other than the directors or chief executive of the
Company, in the Company's shares which fall to be disclosed to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which
have been recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

FE

ZHA

i

FH & B 5553361

EE R 2R Em KRR A

E-AF+-A=+—RH REARFRE
RATFEZERMAE

R

BoOUTEEZAL (LIFBERARAEES
BAB)RARRBRNDFHREREZ S LHE
GBI EXVERE 2N FE3D AR ARREEZ

5 S RORE

Percentage of
the Company’s

Name Capacity Interest in shares issued share capital
EARARBERAT

= =0 R 15 &= AT

Xie Zhikun (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,800,000,000 34.19%

fREE (1) XA R ER

Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co., Ltd* Interest in a controlled corporation 1,800,000,000 34.19%
(Note 1)

FECESERRAR () et UNGIE: 25

Zhonghai Shengfeng (Beijing) Capital Interest in a controlled corporation 1,800,000,000 34.19%
Management Co., Ltd.* (Note 1)

FERE (ER)EXEEERAQA XA R ER
(FzE1)

Shanghai Chixin Investment Co., Ltd* Interest in a controlled corporation 1,600,000,000 30.39%
(Note 1)

FEBEREER AR (M) EatIUNGIE: 25

Silver Venus Investments Ltd. Beneficial Owner 1,600,000,000 30.39%
(“Silver Venus”) (Note 1)

Silver Venus Investments Ltd. EnBEAA
(Tsilver Venus ] ) (Bf&E1)

China Bosum Asset Management Limited ~ Beneficial Owner 500,000,000 9.50%
("China Bosum”) (Note 2)

China Bosum Asset Management Limited ~ Bzi#EA A
(China Bosum J) (Pff#E2)

LAl Aizhong (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 500,000,000 9.50%

FEE A (MiEE2) REH A AR

WEN Ting (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 500,000,000 9.50%

X2 (HiE2) et IUNGIE: 25

Dragon Ocean Development Ltd. (Note 3)  Person having a security interest 500,000,000 9.50%

Dragon Ocean Development Ltd. (Ff{3£3)

EREMESZ AL
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Percentage of
the Company's

Name Capacity Interest in shares issued share capital
EAAR BT

58 30} R 43 1 & BAE D

Wu Qiaofeng (Note 3) Person having a security interest 500,000,000 9.50%

KRB (H13E3) BEEEAERZ AL

Jingwei Textile Machinery Co., Ltd.* Interest in a controlled corporation 400,000,000 7.60%
(Note 4)

mEmEERROER DR (T4 gt NGIE: £

Hwabao Trust Co., Ltd. ("Hwabao") Trustee (Note 5) 350,760,000 6.66%
(Note 5)

EERERAERAR([EE]) FEA (BEES)
(B 5E5)

Notes: Bt EE

(1

1,600,000,000 Shares and 200,000,000 Shares are held by Silver Venus and
Aquila Global Investment Ltd (“Aquila Global”) respectively. Silver Venus is wholly
owned by {51 & AR A (Shanghai Chixin Investment Co., Ltd*), which
is in turn wholly owned by FE®¥EB AR 2 (Zhongzhi Enterprise Group
Co., Ltd*). Aquila Global is wholly owned by E%& ( E8) &R EF L (BRAE)
(Yunji (Shanghai) Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*), a limited partnership
registered under the laws of the PRC, of which it ERHEHEE AR A A
(Beijing Jingpeng Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is the general partner and
has 99% of the voting power. It RRIEHREEILHMR A A (Beijing Jingpeng
Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is owned as to 40.50% by %ﬁéﬁzﬁmﬁ
BRRAF] . ERREAREEBRA
(Yanneng Capital Management Co., Ltd.*) is wholly owned by EPTE&%*EI%
[R X ] (Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co., Ltd*). FRIE > EEH R A 7] (Zhongzhi
Enterprise Group Co., Ltd*) is owned as to 76% by F/8RE (L R)EAREERH
fR 2 7] (Zhonghai Shengfeng (Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd.*), which is
in turn wholly owned by Mr. Xie Zhikun (B2 E #8454 ) . By virtue of the SFO, each
of EiSBIEIREBR A (Shanghai Chixin Investment Co., Ltd*), B2 % E
AR R F] (Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co., Ltd*), FiEREL (L R) EAREE AR
‘A 8] (Zhonghai Shengfeng (Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd.*) and Mr. Xie
Zhikun (fi#E SRS 4 ) is deemed to be interested in all the Shares beneficially held
by Silver Venus, and, each of 2% ( £/8)&EFR L (BRE®) (Yunji Shanghai)
Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*), Jt R RH§IE EE R HR A7) (Beijing
%%EﬁZKMfEﬁBE Al (Yanneng
, FHETEEEARAQF (Zhongzhi Enterprise
), PERE (il: RIEAREEBFRAD A (Zhongha| Shengfeng
*) and Mr. Xie Zhikun (FRE SR 4 ) is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares beneficially held by Aquila Global.

(Yanneng Capital Management Co., Ltd.*

Jingpeng Investment Management Co., Ltd.*)
Capital Management Co., Ltd.*
Ltd*
(Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd.

Group Co.,

Silver VenusK Aquila Global Investment Ltd
([Aquila Global |) % 5ll4%7%1,600,000,000% % 5
12200,000,0000% (% % ° Silver Venuse /8@ {E1%
BERATDZERES M LERGEREFRQFA
FREMCEEBARATEZEHSA - Aquila Global i
—FREFBEEEAMZEREBEEEZR (£
BIREHRL (BERER) 2EEAR - Kl R
REEBERD TEELD%/\I%?%%%X%‘%
B FRRBREERERAGEEHERNER
BRA Tf?&ﬁm50%*&’\°%§E§Zﬁﬁi§ﬁﬂﬁ/,\
AHFECEESEERARNSERE RHEME
SEARAFEAFEIRE (IR)EAEEARA
ﬂ%ﬁm%%*ﬁﬁaﬂiﬁﬁ(iﬁ)ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ

NEHBEREEZEER - REESRHAE
wuv FEBEREERAT  FHECELEESR
REPERE (AR ERERERARNREE
ﬁb?ﬁi%ﬁi’ﬁiﬁf’ﬁﬁ’\sﬂver VenusBE=HFAH Z 2
BROPEEEZR MER (L’i)&ﬁaﬂ/b\(‘ﬁ
RER) it??ﬂ)l%&éﬁﬂiﬁlﬂ CEBRREAR
ﬁi@ﬁﬂEAﬂWﬁm%%@*ﬁﬂﬁAaw/%%
(AR)EAEBERARRBERLESBIH
BAYER Aquila GlobalBE#15H 2 2R P HEAE
e

ZIRERAT 2015F#H
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As LAl Aizhong and WEN Ting are the respectively shareholder of 51% and
49% of the issued share capital of China Bosum, LAl Aizhong and WEN Ting are
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by China Bosum under the SFO.

Zhongrong International Finance Company Limited declared a security interest in
500,000,000 Shares. Zhongrong International Finance Company Limited is wholly
owned by ZR International Holding Company Limited, which is in turn wholly
owned by Dragon Ocean Development Ltd.. Dragon Ocean Development Ltd. is
wholly owned by Mr. Wu Qiaofeng (=& & 55 4 ) . By virtue of the SFO, each of
ZR International Holding Company Limited, Dragon Ocean Development Ltd. and
Mr. Wu Qiaofeng (2§ 554 ) is deemed to be interested in the security interest
declared by Zhongrong International Finance Company Limited.

200,000,000 Shares and 200,000,000 Shares are held by Aquila Global and
Sungi Global Investment Co., Ltd, (“Sungi Global”) respectively. Aquila Global is
wholly owned by £ ( L/8)#&%&H .0 (BRER) (Yunji (Shanghai) Investment
Center (Limited Partnership)*), a limited partnership registered under the laws
of the PRC, of which dt R 5% &EEILH R A & (Beijing Jingpeng Investment
Management Co., Ltd.*) is the general partner and has 99% of the voting power.
It R RIEE B BB AR (Beijing Jingpeng Investment Management Co.,
Ltd.*) is owned as to 40.50% by AL &R D BR AT (Jingwei Textile
Machinery Co., Ltd.*). Sungi Global is wholly owned by %& ( L/§)#&%&H
N (BRAE) (Shangji (Shanghai) Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*),
a limited partnership registered under the laws of PRC, of which 8 &
BRI EAFR AT (Dazi County Dingcheng Capital Investment Co., Ltd.*) is
the general partner and Jt R RIS FHIREEEABR 2R (Beijing Zhongrong
Dingxin Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is its limited partner. U845 35
BRI EAFRAF (Dazi County Dingcheng Capital Investment Co., Ltd.*) is
wholly owned by Jt R ELG ¥R E BB R AR (Beijing Zhongrong Dingxin
Investment Management Co., Ltd.*). dt R RIS IKEEEHFRAHF (Beijing
Zhongrong Dingxin Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is wholly owned by 7 &
BB =7 B R A (Zhongrong International Trust Co., Ltd*) which is owned as to
approximately 37.47% by 45 % #7 & # i% 17 B IR 2 & (Jingwei Textile Machinery
Co., Ltd.*). By virtue of the SFO, each of 2% ( L)§) &AL (BRAE) (Yunji
(Shanghai) Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*), It RRIEIHEE R BRE A
@) (Beijing Jingpeng Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) and 4% 4% %5 4 14 ik A%
BB R AT (Jingwei Textile Machinery Co., Ltd.*) is deemed to be interested in
all the Shares beneficially held by Aquila Global, and, each of I8 ( £/ )&
L (BRAE) (Shangji (Shanghai) Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*),
EWGRHEAREEBR AR (Dazi County Dingcheng Capital Investment Co.,
Ltd.*), It R @S EEE B R AT (Beijing Zhongrong Dingxin Investment
Management Co., Ltd.*), F g EI B {E7EABR 22 A (Zhongrong International Trust
Co., Ltd*) and £&#& %5 A i W 1% 15 B BR 2 &) (Jingwei Textile Machinery Co., Ltd.*)
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares beneficially held by Sungi Global.
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(2)

(3)

ARBE B R EE B AChina BosumBE TR
51% K49% 2 B3R - HURIEZE H RS 50 BE
B R IE R ER China Bosumii B 2 2 2 i {p
AR

Zhongrong International Finance Company
Limited & 7& $500,000,0000% A% 15 7 # /A £ 17 42
% ° Zhongrong International Finance Company
LimitedfBZR International Holding Company
Limited® & # &  MZR International Holding
Company LimitedigDragon Ocean Development
Ltd. & & # A - Dragon Ocean Development Ltd.E5
RBELEERERA -REZFRBMEKRM - ZR
International Holding Company Limited * Dragon
Ocean Development Ltd. &% R & %4 & B9
R ER Zhongrong International Finance Company
LimitedE A R RS 2RO EE#ER -

Aquila Global ¥ Sungi Global Investment Co., Ltd
(['Sungi Global |) % 5l/#%5200,000,000/% f% 7 K
200,000,0008% % 1% = Aquila Globalfy — &R &
BUAEAMZBEREBEEEZR (LB)REPL
(ERA&B)2EHA EPUERRBREEESR
RARRBLBABALIEFII%IKERE - LR IE
REEBERAFAKLEBHBEEROBRAA
5 40.50% 425 ° Sungi Global i — IR BIA
BaAMzERABEERRE (LB)RETL(F
RaRB)2EEE EPERESANERREAR
NRAREBEBAMIIRTREFTREEEEGR
RAREBERABA -ERERAEAREERD
AALRTRSENREERBERART2EHES -
IRPRBFIREEEERAF AT RBERERT
ERARZEESA MTBBEREXEERAAH
BEBGBEMR N BRARERLK37.47 % -
BEEFRBEGR ER (L) REPL(F
REX) R RBREEBRBER AR REEH
W AR AR 2 EE B IR IERAquila Global
ERfacaBRhhES#ER MEE (L8)
BRERL(ERER) ERFRVERREAR
RNEIERPESHFREELFRAF - hELEE
ERARARRKEHBENBROBRAREA
AR AVER Sungi Global B2 #58 < 2 B ik
s



(5)  Hwabao is a trustee of Hwabao Overseas Investment Series 2 NO. 20-10 QDI
Single Money.

(6) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 5,264,566,267 shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2015.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
year is as follows:
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Percentage of the Group’s total

HEAEEAENES L
Purchases Sales
REBH HERE
The largest customer BAEF 5% 41%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREBEFEE 5% 93%
The largest supplier A ER 21% -
Five largest suppliers in aggregate TARMERSET 86% -

At no time during the year, have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company'’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2015 and as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report
EERERE

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OF BUSINESS
REVIEW

Addition information of business review is set out on pages 7 to 9 under
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period of the Group is set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the auditors
of the Company, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Li Yang

DEPUTY CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

feikPia

Shine‘ZOing

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA BEST GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
HEKEZRERAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Best
Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 179, which comprise
the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number: P05044

Hong Kong
30 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEeEakHMEEKRRE

For the year ended 31 December 20158 2 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZF

2015 2014
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—®-HF —T-@OF
P E FTET FHEIT
(E75)
Continuing operations BESEER
Turnover o 9 452,974 320,592
Revenue W &5 10 336,296 267,040
Cost of sales $HE AR (303,990) (254,921)
Gross profit EF 32,306 12,119
Other income H A 11 1,902 1,297
Administrative and other expenses TR H At S (58,165) (22,626)
Realised gain (loss) on held for FIERXRSREZE#HR W=
trading investments (EB#E) 27 35,027 (5,414)
Unrealised (loss) gain on fair value change #{ERXR ZEE Z A FEE
on held for trading investments RER (FE) k= 27 (47,685) 8,349
Share of losses of associates DR & R B E 1R 22 (9,189) =
Loss before tax W 25 BT B 1R 12 (45,804) (6,275)
Income tax expense FrisfiF =% 14 (1,673) (331)
Loss for the year from REFEKLEEG 2
continuing operations FREE (47,477) (6,606)
Discontinued operation ERIELEEK
Loss for the year from REERIEREEHEZ
discontinued operation FAEE 15 (3,514) (21,735)
Loss for the year FAEE (50,991) (28,341)
Other comprehensive H2m|E (ZH) A
(expenses) income
Items that may be reclassified HENEFTHEEZEm. 2
subsequently to profit or loss: HE -
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBREELEZ
translation of foreign operations PEH =% (14,605) (1,364)
Share of translation reserve of associates 7 B & /X 7] & 22 (2,505) =
Fair value (loss) gain on available-for-sale  AI I EKE 2 AFE
investments (BB Kam (1,350) 4,612
(18,460) 3,248
Total comprehensive expenses for the year N % E X7 A% (69,451) (25,093)

BESEZERBMRAA 201563k
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEEakHEMEEKERE

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

2015 2014
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—g-5F -—T-@mF
Bt 5 FTET FHIT
(&%)
Loss for the year attributable to owners of 72 &% A A (L & N &8
the Company
— From continuing operations —REFBELEEER (47,472) (6,604)
— From discontinued operation —REERIEREED (1,214) (10,934)
(48,686) (17,538)
Loss for the year attributable to IR R FE A EE
non-controlling interests
— From continuing operations —REFBELLEED (5) (2)
— From discontinued operation —REERIEEER (2,300) (10,801)
(2,305) (10,803)
(50,991) (28,341)
Total comprehensive expenses FRE2HEXEATES
for the year attributable to THIB AN
— owners of the Company —AREEEB A (66,983) (13,636)
— non-controlling interests — IR A A (2,468) (11,457)
(69,451) (25,093)
Loss per share SREE 17

From continuing and discontinued
operations
— Basic and diluted (HK cents)

From continuing operations
— Basic and diluted (HK cents)

KERERERIEREXRD

—EARREE GBIl

KEFBERER
—EARREE GBIl
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R

As at 31 December 20158 —FE— A F+-A=+—H

2015 2014
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hfF —E—MmF
B 5 FET FH T
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BER&E 18 10,604 7,611
Prepaid lease payment TEREE 19 - 12,131
Intangible asset B AE 20 811 =
Goodwill EES 21 - =
Interests in associates REEERA 2 = 22 99,859 =
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 23 51,762 53,112
163,036 72,854
Current assets REBEE
Prepaid lease payment ENEE 19 - 279
Inventories FE 24 - 10,904
Finance lease receivables el BL & E A 25 176,751 =
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b g W 5 E 26 72,354 113,912
Held for trading investments BIERSEE 27 232,686 98,030
Pledged bank deposit BHEFRITER 28 55 59
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 29 87,522 99,785
569,368 322,969
Assets of a disposal group classified as DERFELEZ
held for sale HESECEE 15 34,636 =
604,004 322,969
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 I H b fE - 5018 30 12,820 32,788
Loan from a non-controlling Bt /8 A Bl EFE R AR R B X
shareholder of a subsidiary 31 - 28,126
Tax liabilities MIEEE 6,805 11,363
19,625 72,277
Liabilities associated with a disposal group EAD 3 A {EHE ~
classified as held for sale HESEHEBE8E 15 54,396 =
74,021 72,277
Net current assets B EERE 529,983 250,692
Total assets less current liabilities EEHBERRBEE 693,019 323,546
MEEMERERAT 20157 8 55
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BN R

As at 31 December 2015R —F—AF+—_H=+—H

2015 2014
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-EHEF —T-EF
Bt FTET FHEIT
Capital and Reserves BARFEE

Share capital % Zx 33 263,228 145,900
Share premium and reserves f& 15 5 1B M 7 1 453,266 198,653

Equity attributable to owners of the RRBIER ANEIEER
Company 716,494 344,553
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE (23,475) (21,007)
693,019 323,546

The consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 179 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Tan Xiangdong
[ R
Director

BF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZ

Share  Investment Non-

Share Share Contributed ~ Translation  Statutory options revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium surplus reserve Reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

(note i) (note i)
Bx  ROBE  BARR  AEEE  iERE BREGE REEMRRE  ZHER Nt FERER E
T T T T T T T Tk ThT T T

(Wsti) (i)

At 1 January 2014 R=F-mF-A-A 121,584 278,145 1,996 1,863 817 31,132 - (166,172) 269,365 (9,550) 259,815
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - (17,538) (17,538) (10,803) (28341)
Other comprehensive expense ~ EAEM2ERE

for the year:
Exchange differences arisngon ~ BEFHNEBHEEL

translation of foreign operations [} £ - - - (110) - - - - (710) (654) (1,364)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale W ERE 7 AT

investments W - - - - - - 4612 - 4612 - 4612
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ £M2E () KALE

income for the year - - - (710) - - 4612 (17,538) (13,636) (11,457) (25,093)
Issue of shares upon placing ~~~ ERERE{TR( (33)

(note 33) 24,316 63,222 - - - - - - 87,538 - 87,538
Transaction cost attributable to B3 E BRE(EZ

issue of new ordinary shares RAHE = (2,189) - - - - - - (2,189) - (2,189)
Recognition of equity-settled share- AV 25 5 3 X

based payments (note 34) B EAGRED) - - - - - 3475 - - 3475 = 3475
Lapse of share options (note 34) B8R (Hi34) - - - - - (1,039) - 1,039 - - -
At31 December 2014 R-Z-mE

TZR=1-H 145,900 339,178 1,996 1,153 817 33,568 4612 (182,671) 344,553 (21,007) 323,546
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

Share  Investment Non-
Share Share Contributed ~ Translation  Statutory options  revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note i) (note i)
Bx  ROEE  BABR  AEEE  iERE BREGE REEMRRE  ZHER Nt FERER st
T T T T T T T Tk ThT Tk T
(i) (Wil
At 1 January 2015 R=F-15-f-A 145,900 339,178 1,996 1,153 817 33,568 4612 (182,671) 344,553 (21,007) 323,546
Loss for the year EhEE - - - - - - - (48,686) (48,686) (2,305) (50,991)
Other comprehensive expense ~ EAEM2ERE
for the year:
Exchange differences arisngon ~ REFINEBHEEL

translation of foreign operations X Z% - - - (14,442) - - - - (14,442) (163) (14,605)
Share of translation reserve PMEBEATAERE

of associates - - - (2,505) - - - - (2,505) - (2,505)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale Wi ERE ATEEE

investments - - - - - - (1,350) - (1,350) - (1,350)
Total comprehensive expense  ER2ERHEE

for the year - - - (16,947) - - (1,350) (48,686) (66,983) (2,468) (69,451)
Issue of shares upon open offer ~ RAFREREARNY

(note 33) (F3t33) 72,949 145,901 - - - - - - 2088%0 - 218850
Issue of shares upon placing  ELEREARHA

(note 33) (H3t33) 8769 175076 - - - - - - 18885 - 1888
Transaction cost attributable to ~ BTH £ BRE(EZ

issue of new ordinary shares RPRE - (12,810) - - - - - - (12,810) - (12,810)
Issue of shares upon exercise of ~ BREEEREIRG

share options (note 34) (Hi334) 610 2917 - - - (160) - - 3367 - 3,367
Recognition of equity-settled  BEZMEREE TN

share-based payments R (M3E34)

(note 34) - - - - - 10,672 - - 10,672 - 10,672
Lapse of share options (note 34)  EARE X (Mi3834) - - - - - (18,874) - 18,874 - - -
Forfeiture of share options BRI E (F3334)

(note 34) - - - - - (1,623) - 1,623 - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1%

+-R=1-H 263,228 650,262 1,996 (15,794) 817 23,583 3,262 (210,860) 716,494 (23,475) 693,019
Note i: The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between — KiiFi: RNEEZHMARBIERATRGOR—ANNE
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the ERBBEISMAR AR ER TR BE
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board BAFTKEBH B AR 2RO EELE(EAZHR
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1996 and the nominal value BAZARAROEBEZ =5 -
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange.
Note ii: In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) Company MisEii: REBEPEAREME ([FE])RQREERFR

Law and the PRC subsidiaries” Articles of Association, a subsidiary registered
in the PRC is required to appropriate 10% of its annual statutory net profit
as determined in accordance with relevant statutory rules and regulations
applicable to enterprises established in the PRC (after offsetting any prior
years' losses) to the statutory reserve. When the balance of such reserve fund
reaches 50% of the entity’s capital, any further appropriation is optional. The
statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase
capital. However, such balance of the statutory reserve must be maintained at
a minimum of 25% of the capital after such usages.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 20158 = F—A# 1+ = H=+—HIFEZF

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—®E-EF -—T-Qm4F
FTET FHET
(E75)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReExK
Loss before tax from Fx Bt Al 5 18
— continuing operations —FHEEEER (45,804) (6,275)
— discontinued operation —BERIEREES (3,514) (21,735)
Loss before tax FRELATE B (49,318) (28,010)
Adjustments for: TTFIBEE EL TR :
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BERRETE
equipment 2,765 2,523
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment TEfTHH & B 5 276 279
Share of losses of associates DG & A R BB 9,189 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary o & — BT B8 2 B 2 W s - (53)
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE KE R
plant and equipment B2 W (150) =
Impairment loss on property, W WEREE
plant and equipment A EE - 16,883
Finance costs BhE B AR 1,483 2,207
Unrealised loss (gain) on fair value BERSGEEZAFE
change on held for trading S REREE
investments (U zs) 47,685 (8,349)
Write-off of property, M2 BB MR
plant and equipment - 13
Share-based payments expenses VARR 9 < 302 10,672 3,475
Interest income FE WA (1,730) (1,031)
Operating cash flows before movements HEREREHR 2L E
in working capital RERE 20,872 (12,063)
Decrease in inventories FEERD - 3,796
Decrease (increase) in trade and 5 N H bW E
other receivables B> ($50) 23,307 (85,452)
Increase in finance lease receivables JE s Bh & A & RR IR IS 0 (176,751) =
Increase in held for trading investments FER S A LN (182,341) (66,687)
Increase (decrease) in trade and B 5 I H b FE 1~ 30IR
other payables = O ) 275 (1,777)
Cash used in operations KEmAZES (314,638) (162,183)
Income tax paid BB (1,127) =
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REEXBHMAZREFE
ACTIVITIES (315,765) (162,183)

BZEEEZERERDA 2015F 8]

59



60

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

2015 2014
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—®-EF —T-QmF
k=2 FTHExT FET
(fE7))
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Interest received B U F B 1,730 1,031
Acquisition of a subsidiary accounted for Y BE—f 5K AL E
as asset acquisition W BE 2 B B~ Al 36 (800) =
Acquisition of investment in an associate WEEN—HEBE R R ZI%E (110,250) =
Transaction cost attributable to the W —HBE AR 2
acquisition of investment in an associate LEREZRZHEA (1,303) =
Deposit refunded for potential acquisition — E7EUREFTREIZ & - 50,000
Addition of prepaid lease payment EmEMAES - (151)
Acquisition of available-for-sale I B Al i SR E
investments - (41,000)
Proceeds on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHRBARZ
FriS IR 35 - 550
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME - KEREZHEZ
plant and equipment Ffr 5 5/ 18 150 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment & & %13 - Bi5 K& (8,871) (3,580)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED RETH (FTRA) A&
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ReFE (119,344) 6,850
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMETE
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary BLERZITERR 2
shares upon placing Fr 1S I8 218,845 87,538
Payment of transaction costs attributable 37 < it & B 377 E R AR
to issue of ordinary shares upon placing JB{R 2 R S (5.628) (2,189)
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary PRAZERZETTBER
shares upon open offer Fr{S 318 218,850 =
Payment of transaction costs attributable to % f<} /2 5 3 & B 3517
issue of ordinary shares upon open offer LTBRIEG 22 KA (7,182) =
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary BRI TP R AT
shares upon exercising share option L@k S RIE 3,367 =
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEB SRS FHE 428,252 85,349
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRREZEEERZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS W (6,857) (69,984)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BZEER
AT 1 JANUARY HEEEER 99,785 169,953
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREH) & (2,536) (184)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+t-—A=+—HZE£K
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented HE&EEER  IRTT
by bank balances and cash HERRIRE I ER 90,392 99,785

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = F—HF+=-A=+—HIFZ

GENERAL

China Best Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” of the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries (together with the Company
referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 43. The Group
also engaged in the manufacture and sales of coal which was
discontinued in current year (see note 15).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company while the functional currencies of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 7(i).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS(s)"), amendments and Interpretations (“Int(s)”),
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA").

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 —
HKFRSs 2012 Cycle

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 —
HKFRSs 2013 Cycle

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

— AR
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E ) 2 EREE M FE43 - REE IR
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MR IEE & (2 RFE15) ©

mEMBHERAET (HET]) 25
EARNB 2 ERER MEE2ME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 201582 =&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of ‘vesting
condition” and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add definitions for
‘performance condition” and ‘service condition’ which were
previously included within the definition of ‘vesting condition’. The
amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment
transactions for which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability should be measured
at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective of whether the
contingent consideration is a financial instrument within the
scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset or liability.
Changes in fair value (other than measurement period adjustments)
should be recognised in profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS
3 are effective for business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria to operating segments, including a description of the
operating segments aggregated and the economic indicators
assessed in determining whether the operating segments
and (ii) clarify that a
reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to the

have ‘similar economic characteristics’;

entity’s assets should only be provided if the segment assets are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012
Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13 clarify
that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential amendments to
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short-
term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate at their
invoice amounts without discounting, if the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or
an intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify
that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent
with the revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that
accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the difference between
the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking
into account accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting
entity is a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently,
the reporting entity should disclose as related party transactions
the amounts incurred for the service paid or payable to the
management entity for the provision of key management
personnel services. However, disclosure of the components of such
compensation is not required.

The directors of the Company consider that the application of
the amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle has had no material effect in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not
apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint
arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement
itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for in
accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts do
not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities
within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS 3
are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards may
be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property
must determine whether:

a) the property meets the definition of investment property in
terms of HKAS 40; and

b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The amendments are applied prospectively. The directors of
the Company consider that the application of the amendments
included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
has had no material effect in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

e TR R M

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZF

(“HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

Part 9 of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

(Cap. 622)

In addition, the annual report requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation during the financial year. As a result, there are
changes to presentation and disclosures of certain information in

the consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to
HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 —
2014 Cycle!

Disclosure Initiative’

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 201582 =&

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations’

f Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

9 Effective date not yet been determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as described
below, the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9
that were issued in previous years with limited amendments to
the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement
category for certain financial assets. The finalised version of HKFRS
9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for impairment
assessments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 20158, % — &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
(2014) requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and commitments
to extend credit were added. Those requirements eliminate
the threshold that was in HKAS 39 for the recognition of
credit losses. Under the impairment approach in HKFRS 9
(2014), it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised. Instead,
expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses should always be accounted for. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition and,
consequently, more timely information is provided about
expected credit losses.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

o HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more closely
aligns hedge accounting with risk management activities
undertaken by companies when hedging their financial and
non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-based approach,
HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a risk component can be
identified and measured and does not distinguish between
financial items and non-financial items. The new model also
enables an entity to use information produced internally for
risk management purposes as a basis for hedge accounting.
Under HKAS 39, it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and
compliance with the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics
that are designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are based
on an economic assessment of the strength of the hedging
relationship. This can be determined using risk management
data. This should reduce the costs of implementation
compared with those for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because
it reduces the amount of analysis that is required to be
undertaken only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have a significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Regarding the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 9 (2014) until a detailed review has been completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to
contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

i) Identify the contract with the customer;
ii) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
iii)  Determine the transaction price;

iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;
and

v) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from one of the
disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or disposal through
distribution to owners) to the other should not be considered to
be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original
plan. There is therefore no interruption of the application of the
requirements in HKFRS 5. Besides, the amendments also clarify
that changing the disposal method does not change the date of
classification.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract that
includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial
asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement
against the guidance for continuing involvement in HKFRS 7
in order to assess whether the additional disclosures for any
continuing involvement in a transferred asset that is derecognised
in its entirety are required. Besides, the amendments to HKFRS 7
also clarify that disclosures in relation to offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim
financial report, unless the disclosures provide a significant update
to the information reported in the most recent annual report.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth of high
quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which
the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where
the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high
quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates
must be used.

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the notes to
the interim financial statements “if not disclosed elsewhere in
the interim financial report”. The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify
that the required interim disclosures must either be in the interim
financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included
within the greater interim financial report. The other information
within the interim financial report must be available to users on
the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the same
time. If users do not have access to the other information in this
manner, then the interim financial report is incomplete.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle will have a material
effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use professional
judgement in determining what information as well as where and
in what order information is presented in the financial statements.
Specifically, an entity should decide, taking into consideration all
relevant facts and circumstances, how it aggregates information in
the financial statements, which include the notes. An entity does
not require to provide a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS if
the information resulting from that disclosure is not material. This
is the case even if the HKFRS contain a list of specific requirements
or describe them as minimum requirements.

Besides, the amendments provide some additional requirements
for presenting additional line items, headings and subtotals when
their presentation is relevant to an understanding of the entity’s
financial position and financial performance respectively. Entities,
in which they have investments in associates or joint ventures,
are required to present the share of other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method, separated into the share of items that (i) will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii) will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

(i)  an entity should consider the effect on the understandability
and comparability of its financial statements when
determining the order of the notes; and

(ii)  significant accounting policies are not required to be disclosed
in one note, but instead can be included with related
information in other notes.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
(Continued)

The amendments will become effective for financial statements
with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier
application is permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
Amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material impact
on the disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of Amendments to HKAS 1 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-based
depreciation methods for property, plant and equipment under
HKAS 16. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable
presumption that use of revenue-based amortisation methods
for intangible assets is inappropriate. This presumption can be
rebutted only in the following limited circumstances:

i)  when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue;

i)  when a high correlation between revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible assets
could be demonstrated.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will become effective
for financial statements with annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
should be applied prospectively.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation (Continued)

As the Group uses the straight-line method for depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of the amendments to HKAS
16 and HKAS 38 will have a material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments to HKAS 27 allow an entity to apply the equity
method to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates in its separate financial statements. As a result
of the amendments, the entity can choose to account for these
investments either:

)) at cost;

ii) in accordance with HKFRS 9 (or HKAS 39); or

iii) using the equity method as described in HKAS 28.

The amendments to HKAS 27 will become effective for financial
statements with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments should be
applied retrospectively.

As the Company does not have any investment in joint ventures,
the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of the amendments to HKAS 27 will have a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs”) AND NEW HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments provide guidance on addressing the
acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and those in HKAS 28, in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its joint venture and associate.
An investing entity is required to recognise the gain or loss arising
from selling or contributing assets that constitutes or contains a
business to a joint venture or associate in full. An investing entity
is required to recognise the gain or loss arising from selling or
contributing assets that does not constitute or contain a business
to a joint venture or associate only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in that joint venture or associate.

The effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 has
not yet been determined. However, earlier application is permitted.
The amendments should be applied prospectively.

As the Group does not have any investment in joint operations, the
directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will have a material
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Details of fair value
measurement are explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary prepares its financial
statements using accounting policies other than those adopted
in the consolidated financial statements for like transaction and
events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are
made to that subsidiary’s financial statement in preparing the
consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Control is achieved when the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group's return.

The Company reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the result of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 201582 = F—AF +=H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii)
derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including
any components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a gain or loss in
profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values
and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as
specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

The Group’s policy for goodwill relating to an associate that
included in the carrying amount of the investment is set out in
“investments in associates” below.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control of those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method.

Under the equity method, investments in associates are initially
recognised at cost. The Group’s share of the profit or loss and
changes in the other comprehensive income of the associates
are recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income
respectively after the date of acquisition. If the Group’s share of
losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
which determined using the equity method together with any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are provided for, and
a liability is recognised, only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 201582 —F —A# 1+ = H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (Continued)

If an associate uses accounting policies other than those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made to make the associate’s accounting policies
conform to those of the Group when the associate’s financial
statements are used by the Group in applying the equity method.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment, any excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate is recognised as
goodwill and is included in the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired. After application of the equity method,
including recognising the associate’s losses (if any), the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise any additional
impairment loss with respect to its investment in the associate.
Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment
in an associate is not separately recognised. The entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the investment ceases to be an associate upon the
Group losing significant influence over the associate, the Group
discontinues to apply equity method and any retained interest is
measured at fair value at that date which is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with
HKAS 39. Any difference between the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate and the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the equity method was discontinued is recognised in profit or
loss. Any amount previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that investment is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained earnings on the same basis as it would have been
required if the investee had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group’s ownership interest in an associate is reduced,
but the Group continues to apply the equity method, the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest is reclassified to profit or loss if that gain or loss
would be required to be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in
the associate. The Group's share in the associate’s gains or losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Such
classification requires the asset or the disposal group must be
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset or
disposal group and its sale is highly probable. Management must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of
an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate or
joint venture, the investment or the portion of the investment that
will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of
the equity method in relation to the portion that is classified as
held for sale from the time when the investment (or a portion of
the investment) is classified as held for sale. Any retained portion
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture that has not
been classified as held for sale continues to be accounted for
using the equity method. The Group discontinues the use of the
equity method at the time of disposal when the disposal results in
the Group losing significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for any retained
interest in the associate or joint venture in accordance with HKAS
39 unless the retained interest continues to be an associate or a
joint venture, in which case the Group uses the equity method (see
the accounting policy regarding investments in associates or joint
ventures above).

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs of disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for goods sold and service rendered in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

—  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

—  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

—  itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

—  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Income from provision of freight forwarding agency services is
recognised when the services are provided.

Consultancy income from finance lease is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.

Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as prepaid lease payments in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
reattributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of
interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan
based on prevailing market interest rates.

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme, Central Provident
Fund (“CPF”) Scheme and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leaves and sick leave in the
period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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e TR R M

For the year ended 31 December 201582 —F —A# 1+ = H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or
loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits.
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of financial
position of the Company at cost less accumulated impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL,
of which interest income is included in net gains or losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 201582 —F —A# 1+ = H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL including financial assets held for trading
on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets and is included in revenue line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note
8.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
finance lease receivables and trade and other receivables) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. The Group designated certain items including listed
and unlisted equity security and unlisted investment in fund as
available-for-sale financial assets on initial recognition of those
items.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active market
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates,
interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. The foreign exchange gains and losses that are
recognised in profit or loss are determined based on the amortised
cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

e  disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period
in which the impairment takes place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investments revaluation
reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and loan
from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity investment is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities of the Group are offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, there is a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investments revaluation reserve is recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002 and
vested on or after 1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates during the
vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002 and
vested on or after 1 January 2005 (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7 November
2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1
January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the consolidated financial statements until such time as the
options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit or
loss in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the exercise
of the share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded as share premium. Options which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register
of outstanding options.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The fair values of the goods or
services received are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve), when the Group obtains
the goods or when the counterparties render services, unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible assets other
than goodwill (other than impairment of
goodwill set out in accounting policy of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable value
of inventories, value in use of property, plant and equipment and
intangible asset for the purpose of impairment assessment, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Specifically,
the Group categorised the fair value measurements into three
levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines whether
transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy for assets
and liabilities which are measured at fair value on recurring basis
by reviewing their respective fair value measurement.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and disclosures
made in the consolidated financial statements. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements.

Buildings

Despite the Group has completed the purchase of the buildings,
the Group's rights to use the buildings were not granted formal
titles from the relevant government authorities in the PRC. Based
on the advice from the legal adviser of the Company, the directors
of the Company are of the opinions that the risks and rewards
of using these assets have been transferred to the Group and the
absence of formal titles to these buildings do not impair the value
of the relevant properties to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 201582 =&

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s
accounting policies (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Depreciation and useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group assesses annually the residual
value and the useful life of the property, plant and equipment
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of these assets and if
the expectation differs from the carrying amount, such differences
from the carrying amount will impact the depreciation charges
in the year in which the estimates change. At 31 December
2015, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was approximately HK$10,604,000 (2014: approximately
HK$7,611,000), net of accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss of approximately HK$2,092,000 (2014: approximately
HK$58,916,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and
equipment have any indication impairment, in accordance with
the relevant accounting policies. The recoverable amounts of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of judgment and estimates on future operating cash flows and
discount rates adopted. Where the actual cash flows are different
from the original estimates, a material change in the amount
of impairment may arise. At 31 December 2015, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment was approximately
HK$10,604,000 (2014: approximately HK$7,611,000), net
of accumulated impairment loss of nil (2014: approximately
HK$40,973,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of intangible asset

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life is tested for impairment
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired in accordance with the relevant accounting
policies. The recoverable amount of the Group’s intangible asset
has been determined based on value-in-use calculations. This
calculation requires the use of judgment and estimates on future
operating cash flows and discount rates adopted. Where the actual
cash flows are different from the original estimates, a material
change in the amount of impairment may arise. At 31 December
2015, the carrying amount of intangible asset was approximately
HK$811,000 (2014: nil). No impairment loss has been recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an
assessment of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances
are applied to inventories where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower than
the cost of inventories. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of inventories was approximately HK$10,904,000, net of
accumulated allowance for inventories of HK$5,771,000. As at 31
December 2015, no inventories has been held for the continuing
operations.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for impairment of trade receivables of the Group is
based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgment. A considerable amount
of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required. At 31 December 2015, the carrying
amount of trade receivables was approximately HK$67,023,000
(2014: HK$108,750,000), net of allowance for impairment of trade
receivables of approximately HK$ 1,449,000 (2014: HK$3,602,000).

Impairment of prepaid lease payment

The Group assesses annually whether prepaid lease payment has
any indication of impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. The fair value of the prepaid lease payment
was based on a valuation conducted by an independent firm
of professional valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve certain assumptions of market conditions. At 31
December 2014, the carrying amount of prepaid lease payment
is approximately HK$12,410,000 and no impairment loss was
recognised. As at 31 December 2015, no prepaid lease payment
has been held for the continuing operations.

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of share options granted at the grant date to
the directors, employees and consultants is recognised as an
expense in full at grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding adjustment to the Group's share
options reserve. In assessing the fair value of the share options,
the generally accepted binomial model was used to calculate the
fair value of the share options. The binomial model requires the
input of subjective assumptions, including the volatility of ordinary
shares and the expected life of options etc. Any changes in these
assumptions can significantly affect the estimate of the fair value
of the share options.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale investments stated
at cost less impairment loss

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 Ffinancial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to determine when an available-for-
sale investment is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration and extent to which the carrying
amount of financial asset is less than its present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset; and the financial health of and short-
term business outlook for the investee, including factors such
as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow. At 31 December 2015, the
carrying amount of available-for-sale investments stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss was approximately HK$7,500,000
(2014: HK$7,500,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
available-for-sale investments of approximately HK$30,750,000
(2014: HK$30,750,000). No impairment loss has been recognised
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Provision for current and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision for taxation
and the timing of payment of the related taxation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax in the period in which such
determination is made.

At 31 December 2015, the Group has estimated unutilised tax
losses of approximately HK$234,961,000 (2014: HK$186,537,000)
available for offset against future profits. The directors of the
Company make estimates on the future profit streams of the
Group entities of which tax losses are not utilised. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised of the remaining tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents, loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues as well as the issue of new debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EXEREE

AEEEREEANRRAEEEE
B AR - FIEE BB (LS R
AL BERAS BARR - AEEE
BB A TR

AEFBEARBERERERAEEFE
HE - HBARIFFEREREFTIAKRAK
REBAANEEER (BRBREETRA
KR -

ARBEZTE MBI EARNRE - (ER®
MR ARBAEFEREARKAE
ERETHBAZRARREARRES
PIEHBER  AEBEEBETHK
RETHEFOEEREARARE

TRTH

Categories of financial instruments ETWMIAEZEH
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-hfF —ET—mE
THEx FH& T
Financial assets BKEE
FVTPL (Held for trading investments) RN TFEH R R W s 3 i 1
(BHERHKRE) 232,686 98,030
Loans and receivables (including cash and ERRERRE (2ERE R
cash equivalents) B EEIER) 335,181 212,250
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 51,762 53,112
619,629 363,392
Financial liabilities HEaE
Amortised cost biog: X 1)D N 12,425 55,854
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For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ - A=4+—HIFZF

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, finance lease receivables, held for trading investments,
available-for-sale investments, pledged bank deposit, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and loan from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Other than the subsidiaries established in the PRC, Singapore
and the United States of America of which functional
currency is RMB, Singapore dollars (“SGD") and United States
dollars (“USD") respectively, the functional currency of the
Company and other subsidiaries is HK$. Certain available-
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the group entities to which they
relate. Foreign currencies are also used to settle expenses
for overseas operations, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

MEEREREBERBR

AEEZTESRTABREESI A
fi YR IR - RN R B B 5RIR - Fi1E
RHRE FHEERE S EMRT
R RITEHIES BHERKEE
1t FE 5 SR IR A B B I8 2 B FE 43 AR AR
EX-FHRERTIAZFBRANSHEA
M -2EZem T AAR ZERBIET
BER (EERER - M XERREAME
RER) EFERRRRDESER -
BIEZERR RN T X - EEE
SEELERZTRAR BREEER
WA ETRERR-

™ 5 [ bR
() E%mEE

R B SR RSB Z
MBARZNEEEDIR/AR
% FonsoT (THmseoT)) k3
T ([ETT]) 4N AR A) R E A B
BRAIZINEEEARETL-ET
A ERE B 5 REMEUK
RAARBRITEGBERSAEEE
EERBNEEE N ERETE
BINERE TR INE RS it
TAREEAZINE R -

AREUIINEFEZEBEER

denominated monetary assets at the reporting date are as WEBCEARBENT
follows:

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF —T-F
FHET F#&IT
RMB AR 513 51,507
usD EIT 60,508 72,339
British Pound (“GBP") FEgE([eE]) 9,440 7,225
HK$ BT - 3,247
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy but the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

No sensitivity analysis was prepared for USD as HK$ is pegged
to USD.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is currently exposed to RMB, GBP and HK$ foreign
currency risk.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
10% (2014: 10%) increase and decrease in functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, HK$ or RMB,
against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% (2014: 10%)
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 10% (2014: 10%) change in foreign currency
rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase in loss for
the year where the respective functional currency (HK$ or
RMB) strengthens 10% (2014: 10%) against the relevant
foreign currency (RMB, GBP or HK$). For a 10% (2014: 10%)
weakening of respective functional currency (HK$ or RMB)
against the relevant foreign currency (RMB, GBP or HKS$),
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss for
the year and the balances below would be negative.

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ - A=4+—HIFZF

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

7.

\

(28 )

e IR R M

%ﬁ@@%ﬂﬁ%&ﬂ%
miEERE (&)

() E#mEpE &)
BRI (B

Effect on profit or loss

HEZCoE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF —E—AF
FET FHEIT
Strengthen against RMB by 10% HAREE10%
(note a) (FfizEa) 51 3,863
Strengthen against GBP by 10% HESEHEI0%
(note b) (fF3ED) 944 541
Strengthen against HK$ by 10% HABTHEI0%
(note c) (Mg3EC) - 244
Notes: Bt 5

(@)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on RMB bank
balances and cash not subject to cash flow hedges at year end.

(b)  This is mainly as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-
sale investments not subject to fair value hedges at year end.

(c)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on HK$ bank
balances and cash not subject to cash flow hedges at year end.

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances, due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate. It is the Group's policy to keep
its bank balances at floating rate of interest so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposit (see note 28 for
details).

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The directors of the Company consider that the interest rate
risk in relation to variable rate bank balances are insignificant
due to these balances are either within short maturity period
or the outstanding balances are not significant.
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities and available-for-
sales securities. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.
The Group's equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange. In addition, the
Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price risk
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective listed investments classified
as held for trading investments had been 20% (2014:
20%) higher/lower, the loss after tax for the year ended 31
December 2015 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$38,859,000 (2014: HK$16,371,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of these listed investments.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale investments
stated at fair value had been 20% (2014: 20%) higher/lower,
the investment revaluation reserve for the year ended 31
December 2015 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$8,852,000 (2014: HK$9,122,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of these investments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not
representative of the other price risk for the investments in
listed equity securities as the year end exposure does not
reflects the exposure during the year.

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 20158 2 =&

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to a failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In respect of finance lease receivables, representing loan advances
to customers with pledged assets, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s financial background, current ability to pay and the
financial status of the guarantor, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. At 31 December
2015, the finance lease receivables are secured with the leased
assets. All the finance lease receivables are arised in the PRC.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. The Group’s concentration of credit risk
by geographical locations are mainly in the PRC and Hong Kong,
which accounted for 66% and 33% (2014: 53% and 46%) of
the total trade receivable as at 31 December 2015 respectively.
The Group has concentration of credit risk as 66% (2014: 46%)
and 99% (2014: 96%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The credit risk on held for trading investments, available-for-sale
investments, and pledged bank deposit is limited because they are
deposited with financial institutions or investment counterparties
with high credit quality and the Group does not expect any
significant counterparty risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. MBEREEBEEREX
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (%)
Liquidity risk REE SRR
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and REEBRBDESRR RNEEEZEWFH
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate ErRBEeRESEEIER  BUHRE
by the management to finance the Group's operations and BERASELERMES RRER
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management CMEB R  BIREEEHRITLE
monitors the utilisation of its bank balances and cash and considers SRR 2 FERMR  WRAE HER
the risk is minimal. B
The maturity dates of all financial liabilities are repayable on RERERR MEVBEESERE
demand or within one year as at the end of each of the reporting KFER—FAEE-
periods.
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 8. A¥HEFE
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts RAFESERA HRNERARBRE L
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised Sk BNEs 2 HR - BF 758 B R B 7% B (B ik
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair SHA AN e M BHRE 2REE
values due to short-term or immediate maturities. BN FERE -
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TRESBERECEEREERSHRERR
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period UAFEFEZEM T AT BIEAR
for recurring measurement, grouped into Levels 1 to 2 based on SEEHBEBEREMECLATED
the degree to which the fair value is observable in accordance to HAE—HEF -
the Group's accounting policy.
31 December 2015
—E-HF+=-HA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
£—8 | et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THER FE T
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEIIRRE RS R
RECHKEE
Held for trading-listed BEEE 2 EmRAE?
equity securities 232,686 - 232,686
Available-for-sale investments Tt H&E&RE
Listed equity security EWRAFZS 8,977 - 8,977
Unlisted fund instruments FEMESTE - 35,285 35,285
241,663 35,285 276,948
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8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

AFEFTE @

31 December 2014
—F-mE+=A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Total
F—8 EF-8 45T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAET FET

Financial assets at FVTPL BEATEIERREKZER

BECHKEE

Held for trading-listed BEEE 2 EMRAE 5

equity securities 98,030 - 98,030
Available-for-sale investments At H &% &

Listed equity security EMRAFS 6,739 = 6,739
Unlisted fund instruments FEEMESLTE = 38,873 38,873
104,769 38,873 143,642

There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy in

the current and prior years.

The valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements of each financial instrument on a recurring basis are

set out below:

Fair value hierarchy

RAEERBEFE SATEEHEY
RS A A e 7T R o
SESBTAATENBRGEEHE
7 5 R B i (7 0% 2 8 A BB BB
T :

Valuation technique and key inputs

N ERE FEATZEZREIERNAZE
Listed equity securities Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
ERAFE S E—8 EERT 5 T E A B
Unlisted fund instruments Level 2 Quoted prices from financial institutions
based on bid prices in active market for
the noted shares under the portfolio of
the unlisted fund instruments
FEMESTA EH CRMEERENENARLEMESTAASE

THEROZERTSEAB
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9. TURNOVER Sl

Turnover represents revenue arising on (i) trading on radio system,
electronic appliance and fuel, (i) gross proceeds from disposal of
held for trading investments; (iii) consultancy income in respect
of finance lease; (iv) provision of international air and freight
forwarding services; (v) interest income from finance leases; and
(vi) dividend income from held for trading investments for the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from continuing
operations is as follows:

EXE
EXBEEFNNEEERERR BT
P R (N ERHER BT E Z P
BRERE: (VFEREREZEAM
WA (iR BB Az & E5E AR TS ¢+ (v)
BMEHEEZFBWA : RVIFHER H&
BZRBWAESE 2 W -

FAREBXREFBERLEEK 2 Wa
ZOMETE

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-HF =
FTEx FHET
(gg=75)
Trading of goods B &R m 311,388 260,767
Gross proceeds from disposal of LERERZEREZ
held for trading investments FRiS s/ IE 4258 116,678 53,552
Consultancy income from finance lease BEMESEMRKA 11,101 -
Provision of international air and RHEBERMZE R
sea freight forwarding services B EEBRE 8,102 5,868
Interest income from finance leases R E SN B A 4,375 =
Dividend income from held FERSTE ZREBA
for trading investments 1,330 405
452,974 320,592
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10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
the type of goods sold or services delivered or provided. The
directors of the Company have chosen to organise the Group
around difference in products and services. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Company’s reportable segments are as follows:

a) International air and sea freight forwarding segment engages
in the provision of international air and sea freight forwarding
and logistic services to customers;

b) Securities trading segment engages in trading of equity
securities and dividend income from held for trading
investments;

¢) Trading of goods segment engages in trading of products
including but not limited to radio system, electronic appliance
and fuel in Hong Kong and the PRC; and

d) Finance leasing segment engages in finance leasing of plant
and machinery in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
commenced a new reportable and operating segment, finance
leasing, as a result of the establishment of Rongjinda Finance Lease
Company Limited* (“Rongjinda Finance”) (Bt S EREREBFR A
&) in the PRC.

The operation of manufacture and sale of coal segment of
the Group was discontinued in the current year. The segment
information reported on the next pages does not include any
amounts for these discontinued operation, which are described in
more detail in note 15.
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10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. Wz R 7 #BE SR (#)
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and results PR R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results TXRASEERBFELEEBIRRE
from continuing operations by reportable and operating segments. RganEEl o s W REE DT
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-Z—HF+-A=+—HLEE
Continuing operations HEEEXK

International

air and
sea freight Securities Trading of Finance
forwarding trading goods leasing Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BER
BLEE BHEE BEAR RERE @it
FET TET TET TET TER
Turnover EEH 8,102 118,008 311,388 15,476 452,974
Revenue Yz
External 9N 8,102 1,330 311,388 15,476 336,296
Segment results NEEE 597 (11,890) 7,062 10,720 6,489
Share of losses of associates 715 it & A Al E 18 (9,189)
Gain on disposal of LENE HER
property, plant and RfE W
equipment 150
Unallocated corporate APEREBRX
expenses (44,083)
Unallocated other income &7 B E AR A 829
Loss before tax BRERIER
(continuing operations) (FELEER) (45,804)

1 18 China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 20158 2 =&

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

e IR R M

—BEF=AS—AULFEE

10. Wz & 2 #B & B (&)

DM E R ELE (B

BE_T-NF+_A=t—BLFE

Continuing operations FREREXER
International
air and
sea freight Securities Trading of Finance
forwarding trading goods leasing Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Bz
HLEE BHEE BEERM HEME @t
T T T THT T
(&=351)
Turnover BEE 5,868 53,957 260,767 - 320,592
Revenue e zx
External #5h 5,868 405 260,767 - 267,040
Segment results D EE 70 3,032 7,575 = 10,677
Gain on disposal of HE—RHBARL
a subsidiary (note 35) Wozs (BHEE3S5) 53
Unallocated corporate AAREBRZ
expenses (18,233)
Unallocated other income KA EE 4 A 1,228
Loss before tax BB AR
(continuing operations) (BERELK) (6,275)
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the gD B2 G ET IR M FE3 P AN &

same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represents the profit earned (loss from) by each

segment without allocation of central administration costs,

directors’ emoluments, depreciation of certain property, plant and

equipment, share of losses of associates, gain on disposal of a

subsidiary, gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net

foreign exchange loss, bank interest income and sundry income.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

Bz @ BORMER - D ERAE S D
PrEREL 2 s A (FTEEZER) 'EESEP
YARDEFRITEREAA EEHE
:FEF%%E’JTEE B Mk 7 ﬁHHﬁps
REEE  HE—RMB ARz s
HEME BE MRz W JMNER
BFE - IRTTHR B IRA KRB - 1t
BOMERLFEREAMAEES
BRREERZEE

=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 20152 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

10. Wz & 2 #B & % (&)

Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by TXAAEERREDHE D 2 EE
reportable segments. BB
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-Z—HF+-A=+—HLEE
Continuing Operations HEEEXK
International
air and
sea freight Securities Trading of Finance
forwarding trading goods leasing Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERRER
BEEE EHEE BEEEM BERE @it
FET TET TET TET TER
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DHEE 1,024 232,686 68,177 177,352 479,239
Assets of a disposal PEARFELNEZ
group classified HERBZEE
as held for sale 34,636
Unallocated corporate assets K2 EEEEE 253,165
Consolidated assets BEEE 767,040
LIABILITIES =07
Segment liabilities AR 1,675 - 85 2,861 4,621
Liabilities associated with ~ EHHEAFIELE 2
a disposal group classified  HESEEH 2
as held for sale BfE 54,396
Unallocated corporate FOEEEBE
liabilities 15,004
Consolidated liabilities LEEE 74,021

120
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ - A=4+—HIFZF

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

10. =z R o EBER (&)

THEERESB (@)
BE-—T - NE+-—A=1+—RILEE

Continuing Operations KHESEXR
International
air and
sea freight Securities Trading of Finance
forwarding trading goods leasing Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Bl iz &
BLEE FHEE EEMM MEMRE BEr
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
(E5)
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DA E 1,051 98,030 101,225 = 200,306
Assets of a disposal SEARBELEZ
group classified HESB EE
as held for sale 36,639
Unallocated corporate KA B EBEE
assets 158,878
Consolidated assets RERE 395,823
LIABILITIES afs
Segment liabilities FHBEE 1,962 = 157 = 2,119
Liabilities associated with EHMEAFEHE 2
a disposal group HESERREZ
classified as held for sale & & 21,860
Unallocated corporate RO EEBEE
liabilities 48,298
Consolidated liabilities ~ &ZA&E 72,277

BELEZERBMRAA 201563k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 20152 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
Continuing Operations

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
available-for-sale investments, interests in associates,
intangible asset, pledged bank deposit, bank balances
and cash, the equipment of head office and certain other
receivables; and

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than

tax liabilities, loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary and part of other payables.

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(CONTINUED)

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ - A=4+—HIFZF

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2015

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

10. =z R o EBER (&)

Hittn HE R
BE-F-AF+-A=t+-HILEFE

Continuing Operations KHESEXR
International
air and
sea freight  Securities  Trading of Finance
forwarding trading goods leasing Unallocated Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BhZER
BLEE EHEH EEEM REHE RAE ast
TR TR TR TR TET TET
Amounts included in the AESHERL
measure of segment profit A HWEEBFAZ
or loss or segment assets: 8
Additions to non-current REFRBEAE (M)
assets (note) - - 697 18 8,967 9,682
Depreciation of property, mE BEREBENE
plant and equipment 3 - 420 3 1,171 1,597
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BE &
plant and equipment BL-pdl e - - - - (150) (150)
Realised gain on held REXGREZ
for trading investments BER Y - (35,027) - - - (35,027)
Unrealised loss on fair value  ${ERX & 2 R EH
change on held for trading ~ AFEZEER
investments - 47,685 - - - 47,685
Amounts regularly provided to EHREBLERRE
the chief operating decision ~ #R#BRFIEH BEH
maker but not included in the 57 HEEF
measure of segment profitor KB AZ &5
loss or segment assets:
Interest income FBHA - - (901) - (829) (1,730)
Share of losses of associates & A Rl 18 - - - - 9,189 9,189
Income tax expenses EHRAX - - 9 1,664 - 1,673

Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments and interests

in associates.

MizE: JERMBEETBEAHEERE RKEE
NE 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 20152 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. iz R D BEFR (&)

124

(CONTINUED)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

B EER ()

—OFt+t-_A=1T—HLFE

:I:— =
Continuing Operations FRESEXER
International
air and
sea freight Securities Trading of Finance
forwarding trading goods leasing  Unallocated Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Bl Az &
BLEE EHFEE BEE@m REEE ROE st
THIT THIT THIT THIT THIT THIT
(F555)
Amounts included in the FESHERL
measure of segment profit or D EHEEEFALZ
loss or segment assets: S8
Additions to non-current REFRBAE (M)
assets (note) - - 1,222 - 2,358 3,580
Depreciation of property, mE- BERRENE
plant and equipment 3 - 48 - 450 501
Write-off of property, WM BERE
plant and equipment - - - - 13 13
Gain on disposal of HE—RHBARZ
a subsidiary (note 35) Wozs (KiaE35) = = = = (53) (53)
Realised loss on held RERGREZ
for trading investments BEREE - 5,414 - - - 5,414
Unrealised gain on fair value ~ H{ERX S E 2 K EH
change on held for trading A FEZ B
investments - (8,349) - - - (8,349)
Amounts regularly provided to TR T BEERKH
the chief operating decision AR EH B
maker but not included in the 57 HEEF
measure of segment profitor KB AZ &5
loss or segment assets:
Interest income FEHA - - - - (1,028) (1,028)
Income tax expenses FEHAX - = 332 = (1) 331

Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments.

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ - A=4+—HIFZF

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. Wz & 2 #B & B (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from major products and services FEEmRERBEzWE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from RTRAEERIIBEFHELEE
continuing operations from sales of its major products and EmRiRtRBE I HELEXBES
provision of services to external customers: ZWEs A
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—®B—-hfF —E -
FHT FHT
(&E5)
Trading of goods EE R m 311,388 260,767
Consultancy income from finance leases B & E R WA 11,101 =
Provision of international air and TR BR fin Z2
sea freight forwarding services B EEERS 8,102 5,868
Interest income from finance leases FE RSN S WA 4,375 -
Dividend income from held for FHER ST E 2R BN
trading investments 1,330 405
336,296 267,040
Geographical information i EE R
Trading of goods is carried out in the PRC and Hong Kong. AEERFBELEBETEERR R
International air and sea freight forwarding services are carried out Frons - 36 M K mE M HE 1T BIRR fin 2=
in Singapore, North and South America. Trading of securities is NG EEEXER REBETEHFEE
carried out in Hong Kong. Finance leasing is carried out in the PRC. ¥ -mMEMENRPEEST
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 20152 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. Wz R 7 #BE SR (#)
(CONTINUED)
Geographical information (Continued) HWEER (&)
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers REBEIBEFPIRZER DIRE L
is presented based on the location of the operations of the EHE T ANEBIETBEEERTY
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is REEEHEZ] -

presented based on the geographical location of assets.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
HBEF KR FRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated)

“g-Tf -T-NF =B-FF -T-NF
THER FAET TR FAET

(EE7) (ZE75)
North and South America EEMEEEM 5,349 3,230 - =
PRC A 199,412 97,276 1,422 17,542
Hong Kong B 128,782 163,896 9,993 2,197
Singapore N 2,753 2,638 - 3
336,296 267,040 11,415 19,742

Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments and interests MeE: SEMBEETRENHELEIRE RN &

in associates . NCId:

1 26 China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 20158 2 =&

e IR R M

—BEF=AS—AULFEE

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. =z R o EBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Information about major customers FEEFER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing REEFEUNTERLER 2K AR
over 10% of the overall revenue of the Group is as follows: EEBEKRBRI0% :
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-hfF —E—MF
FET FET
(&&E7)
— Customer A — B R 136,977 N/ATS 3 2
— Customer B! — =57 54,609 97,275
— Customer (' —®EPR 50,821 131,480
— Customer D' —®BPRT 46,959 32,012
L Revenue from trading of goods segment : KB BB M 2 WA
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total 2 HEEREGASEBE B K THEEI0% °
revenue of the Group.
OTHER INCOME 1. Hlg A
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-REF —HE
FET FHBT
(&&E3)
Continuing operations HEREXER
Interest income from KB THIEE Z2FEWA
— bank —R1T 829 1,028
— overdue trade receivables — B HIE 5 e WA 901
Government grant (note) BT (ML) 22 16
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) e E ARz W
(H$#E35) - 53
Gain on disposal of property, HEDE  BERZE 2K
plant and equipment 150 -
Sundry income IR A - 200
1,902 1,297

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2015,

a government grant of

approximately HK$22,000 (2014: HK$16,000) was granted to the Group
in relation to the job credit scheme in Singapore on the condition that
the Group has made CPF contributions in Singapore. The government
grant has been recognised in the same periods in which the expenses

were recognised.

F & -

BE_Z-AF+_A=+—HLEE"
AN ER B BRI — IR L A B A B S
BT 7 B #922,000%8 7T (= F — M5 -
16,000/ 7T ) ° N R E B [AHT 11 2 R
RELER MERFZBRFHB) - LK
JF 4 Bh B £ HiE A8 B 52 2 48 [B) A ) PO iR

=

EEEZRERAR 2015F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 20152 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

12.LOSS BEFORE TAX 12. RBLAIE 18
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-HF —T-mEF
FTET T
(&E75)
Continuing operations BERSEER
Loss before tax has been arrived B 56 AT 5 48 T A< 40 BR TR 31
at after charging: BIFIRIEDN :
Staff costs fE B AR
— directors’ emoluments (note 13(a)) —EEE (KisE13()) 8,585 5,512
— other staff costs —Hfibfg B A 12,066 4,741
— share-based payment expenses —URHO R HRAEZ (T BE
(excluding those for directors MEENREBREZ
and consultants) AR X X) 5,340 1,393
— retirement benefits scheme — IR RAE A ET B 3K
contributions (excluding (TERERESHI)
those for directors) 743 255
Total staff costs EERAER 26,734 11,901
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI B & 1,138 1,054
Depreciation of property, M- -BWERZEITE
plant and equipment 1,597 501
Write-off of property, plant and equipment i $547 % - BE MR - 13
Net foreign exchange loss SNEE B9 18 F 58 757 612
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AR 2 FEKAK 298,311 250,795
Share-based payment expenses mE R R 2 ARG R
for consultants 3,367 -
Minimum lease payments under KEMEXHZ&ERS
operating lease charges 11,668 2,934

128 China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZF

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S BEERTHAZMERES

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ M e

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EERTHARZMS &
emoluments (Continued)
Certain of the comparative information of directors’ ZAIRER & RARHEHIFEZE =
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2014 previously E—NF+_A=+—HILFE
disclosed in accordance with the predecessor Companies R EEHE 2B THRER
Ordinance have been restated in order to comply with the REEMAFEBBREUESD (F
new scope and requirements by the Hong Kong Companies 622F ) 2B RMRE -

Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The emoluments paid to Du Chunyu for the year ended HE-_Z—NF+=-_A=+—8
31 December 2014 has been restated and included in the IEEFEEENMER HFcEESE
discontinued operation (note 15). P WEF AB R IEE & %1 (M
15)
Note: B 5
Tan Xiangdong, Li Yang and Li Xiaolong are also chief executive of the BEAR -ZTHERFEENRASADFTHEA
Company and their emoluments disclosed above include those for services HoHEXREZMEBERSREETR
rendered by them as chief executive. AT R M 2 PR o
No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years RBEEZE-FT—HAFR-_FT—NFE+=-A
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. =ST—HIEFE TEESHEXRBNE
EAT B & o
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEMS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the rEFRAEZRFALTEBRER
Group, four (2014: four) were directors of the Company NAEIMBEEFE(ZE—HF: M
whose emoluments are set out in (a) above. The aggregate H) HEZHEE R X (a)F
emoluments of the remaining one (2014: one) individuals HoHEB—EERFALT(ZE
were as follows: —OF: —F%) M BB
T
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-HF —T-EF
FET T
Salaries and other benefits e RHEAER 1,360 813
Share-based payments expense LARR 17 32 5 52 195 347
Retirement benefits scheme RRAEF) FT 2R
contributions 18 18
1,573 1,178

BELSEZERBFRAA 201563k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S B.EERTHEZMERES
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ <

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEBMS (&)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BEMEAETIIEER :

2015 2014

No. of No. of

employees employees

—E-EF —EmE

BEEAH BB A

HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T £ 1,500,000/% 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T £2,000,000/% 7T 1 -

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
of the Company and the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of directors of the
Company and the employees waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments paid by the Group during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.
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For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZF

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

14. FTEHEX

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-HF —Z e
FTERT FHIT
(&E:75))
Continuing operations FEREER
Current tax: B HATIE -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R PTISTR 1,664 332
(Over) under provision in prior years BEFE (BEER) BETR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERERGEH - (1
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R PTIS 9 =
9 (1)
Deferred taxation (note 32) EERIIE (MFE32) - =
1,673 331

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group did not have assessable profits for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries, except Rongjinda Finance, is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

Rongjinda Finance is established in Qianhai, Shenzhen, and the
income tax rates applicable to Rongjinda Finance is 15% pursuant
to Commercial Financial Circular No.350/2014 from 1 January
2014 to 31 December 2020.

Taxation arising in Singapore and United State of America is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

HRAEERBEEZE_ZT-—HFR_Z
—HET A=+ BHLFELER
AR A - B R L R S B AT R R
fhae

RIBEFEPEMESTE ([REMBH
E]) RIBFEFBREZBHEGD] - R E
WEBAR (MESEMERINB_ZZT
NE—A—HEBZHMEAE25% °

B m & ORYIBTER AL - MARER RS
¥R EE350/20145% B —Z—M
F—F—RBE-ZE-FE+-_A=1+—
BEEERANREERE ZEMR=X
5H15% ©

REIEREBEEZHIBARE A
R BT EE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 20152 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

14.

15.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

14. FTEHBEX (&

FAZHBERAXEFaEE REM
SRR P SI) 2 B T AT RS 18 AR 40

other comprehensive income as follows: I
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-HF —T-EF
FTEx FHET
(gesE751)
Loss before tax (from continuing operations) & &t 51 &5 18
(REFBEEEER) (45,804) (6,275)

Tax at the domestic income LA PTIS TR E25%

tax rate of 25% (2014: 25%) (ZZ W% :25%)

SEZHIE (11,451) (1,569)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible TEMBERZ 2 HBE

for tax purpose 2,373 1,999
Tax effect of income not taxable BARTRA Z iS5 2

for tax purpose (473) (377)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss PRARBEE BT E (381) (1,172)
Tax effect of the exemption granted —HERENEAREEE R

to a PRC subsidiary MG E (1,120) =
Tax effect of share of losses of associates DB EARBEC BT E 2,297 =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZMGEE 2 HBLE 6,464 1,451
Under (over) provision in prior year BEFERENE (BEES) 9 (1
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries TEH b R AR R A & 2 8

operating in other jurisdictions ARAFEATRRE 22 3,955 =
Income tax expenses 8 1,673 331

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 32.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 17 December 2015, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party in relation
to the disposal of entire equity interest in Graceful Mind Group
Limited (“Graceful Mind”), which carried out all of the Group’s
operation in relation to manufacturing and sales of coal products.
The assets and liabilities attributable to the coal business, which
are expected to be sold within twelve months, have been classified
as a disposal group held for sale and are presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The net proceeds
of disposal are expected to be HK$10,000,000, which exceed
the net carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities and
accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZ

15. B R IEREEK (&)
ER MRS REERRER Y EY

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED)

The results of the operation in relation to manufacturing and sales

of coal products for the year were as follows: EEBEMT
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF —T-F
FTER F&T
Revenue & - 9,236
Cost of sales HE KA - (10,230)
Gross loss EiE a5 - (994)
Other income H b A 1 146
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HAX - (4)
Administrative and other expenses THEEAMmER (2,032) (1,793)
Impairment loss on property, M- BRE KR EREER
plant and equipment - (16,883)
Finance costs A& AR (1,483) (2,207)
Loss before tax MR AT A 18 (3,514) (21,735)
Income tax expenses FrisHiF = - =
Loss for the year FRNEE (3,514) (21,735)
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIERERBEFAER
operation include the following: BENATEIE:
Staff costs B B A
— directors’ emoluments —E5He - 125
— other staff costs —H b {E B KA 419 1,180
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI BN & - 26
Depreciation of property, M BE REETE
plant and equipment 1,168 2,022
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment TE T 7 & H 8E 276 279
Impairment loss on property, M E R EEREEE
plant and equipment - 16,883
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For the year ended 31 December 20152 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED) 15. ERIEREZEK &)

During the year, the manufacture and sales of coal segment
contributed approximately HK$4,000 (contributed in 2014:
HK$29,193,000) to the Group’s net operating cash flows,
contributed approximately HK$1,000 (incurred 2014: HK$780) in
respect of investing activity.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the manufacture and
sales of coal segment as at 31 December 2015, which have been
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position, are as follows:

FR-RENEERRITALAEE
2RI 5% 5 B B 44,0008
T (RZZE—WHFHR: 29,193,000/
TL) IR EEE B EIAY1,00008 T (=
T—PI4E: 780/ TT) ©

R=T-RE+-A=+—H BER
HERRD B2 AERAREEHAT
MEAMBRRRFBIZIIMT

2015
NOTES HK$'000
—E-hF
Bt 5 FEx
Property, plant and equipment M- BE REE 18 2,891
Prepaid lease payments classified DERIERDEECENES
as non-current assets 19 11,226
Goodwill Péﬁ%% 21 -
Prepaid lease payments classified PERTBEEZENES
as current assets 19 264
Inventories FE 10,327
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b e IE 7,058
Bank balance and cash RITHEB KRS 2,870
Total assets classified as held for sale PEARBELEZEEHLE 34,636
Trade and other payables B 5 I CH b FE 3R 19,721
Loan from a non-controlling B 8 A B FE 1= IR AR SR B 3K
shareholder of a subsidiary 31 29,609
Tax liabilities HIBEE 5,066
Total liabilities classified as held for sale SPHRARELEZBEES 54,396
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17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZ

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2015, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end

of the reporting period (2014: nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

e TR R M

16. 18 B

17.

ARARREBE-_ZT—AF+_A=1+—
B IFFE I &R Sk BUR RS - B
B3RS AR AR EER E RS (=
T—PUF ) o

BREE
FERCRIEREER

NG N AT e T R ST
18 TO R T B 5

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-HF —E -
TEx FHET
(ge&E51)
Loss B8
Loss for the purpose of basic and HERERREEEE
diluted loss per share s &l (KA
(Loss for the year attributable HEANEEFRNER)
to owners of the Company) 48,686 17,538
2015 2014
‘000 ‘000
—E-RF —T-F
TR F A&
Number of shares KRHEE
Weighted average number of NERERREEEE
ordinary shares for the purpose of = 2 & AR 0 15 2
basic and diluted loss per share 4,781,006 2,526,270

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the

exercise of the Company’s share options because the exercise price

of those options was higher than the average market price for

both 2015 and 2014.

RZEBE-—RFER_Z-NFEHREFE -
HRARRBREZITEESRN FH
miE - MEHE SR ERR I ERR
S BAEIETE
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17.LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

For continuing operations

17.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from

continuing operations attributable to the owners of the Company

is based on the following data:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 20152 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

EREE @
A T

ARAHAAREREREEZBERE
AREBEBEBIREATBIRAE -

Loss figures are calculated as follows: ERHEFHENT
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-HF —T-F
FTHET FHEIT
(&%)
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ~ RNAGHEA AEEEANEE
the Company 48,686 17,538
Less: Ve
Loss for the year from BERIEEEXEBFEANER
discontinued operation (1,214) (10,934)
Loss for the purpose of basic and R ELEEBERERK
diluted loss per share from BaEiems 2 B8
continuing operations 47,472 6,604

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for

both basic and diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued operation
is HK0.03 cents per share (2014: HK0.43 cents per share), based
on the loss for the year from the discontinued operation of
HK$1,214,000 (2014: HK$10,934,000) and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted loss per share.
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For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZ

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ BMERZE

Plant and Furniture and Office Motor Leasehold
Buildings ~ machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles Improvement Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT HEREE GARKE BLERE AE HENEZE @t
FHL TAT TET THT THT TAT FAT
CosT KA
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-N¥—-A—H 48,307 11,396 158 124 4,537 - 64,522
Exchange realignment ERAE (1,055) (249) 3) (5) (47) - (1,359)
Additions AE 629 - 279 179 3,122 - 4,209
Derecognised on disposal of ~ # |F BERA L & — i B AR
a subsidiary (note 35) (K#3%35) = = = = (829) = (829)
Write-off ik - = = (16) = = (16)
At 31 December 2014 and M= —M4%
1 January 2015 TZA=t-BR
“Z-1%-H—H 47,881 11,147 434 282 6,783 - 66,527
Exchange realignment B R A% (2,532) (589) @) (10) (176) - (3315
Additions NE = = 74 272 8,048 477 8,871
Reclassified as assets of ENN BRI BARE
a disposal group classified ~ HEZHELEZEE
as held for sale (note 15) (KtzE15) (45,349) (10,558) (146) = (2,025) = (58,078)
Disposals HE - - - - (1,309) - (1,309)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-1%
+-A=+-H - - 354 544 11,321 477 12,696
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z7&# % R fE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2014 R=ZZ—NmE—A—-A 31,562 6,822 63 113 2,159 - 40,719
Exchange realignment ERAR (702) (152) ) (5) (14) - (874)
Provided for the year FRER 917 631 38 19 918 - 2,523
Eliminated on disposal of & —FfIE A AR H3H
a subsidiary (note 35) (K17E35) - - - - (332) - (332)
Eliminated on write-off i aE s 8 - - - @) - = @)
Impairment loss recognised ~ ERHER 2 FEE B
for the year 13,628 3,255 - - - - 16,883
At 31 December 2014and  R-ZE—NF
1 January 2015 +ZA=+—-Hk
“Z-nf¥-A-H 45,405 10,556 100 124 2,731 - 58,916
Exchange realignment IR 2,412) (574) (7) 6) (92) = (3,093)
Provided for the year FNEE 331 369 132 9% 1,720 119 2,765
Reclassified as assets of ENNEANERRE
a disposal group classified ~ HEZHEEEZ
as held for sale (note 15) & (fi{z£15) (43,324) (10,351) (114) - (1,398) - (55,187)
Disposals HE - = = = (1,309) = (1,309)
At 31 December 2015 AZ2-T1F
+-A=+-H — = 1M 210 1,652 119 2,092
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%
+=ZA=1+-H - - 243 334 9,669 358 10,604
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—NE
+=A=+-H 2,476 591 334 158 4,052 - 7,611
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following useful life and rates per

annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the
lease, or 25 years

Plant and machinery 10%

10% — 33.33%

10% — 20%

16.67% — 33.33%

Over the term of the lease

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Motor vehicles
Leasehold improvement

As at 31 December 2015, the building ownership certificates
of all buildings situated in the PRC under medium lease have
not been granted by relevant government authorities with the
aggregate carrying values of approximately HK$2,025,000 (2014:
HK$2,476,000). In the opinion of the directors of the Company
based on the advice from the legal adviser, the absence of building
ownership certificates to these buildings does not impair the value
of the relevant buildings to the Group. The related building was
classified as assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

In light of the poor performance of the manufacture and sale
of coal operation for the year ended 31 December 2014, an
impairment assessment has been performed by the directors of
the Company to determine the recoverable amount of these
property, plant and equipment. The directors of the Company
engaged Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited (“Jones Lang”), a qualified valuer not connected with the
Group, to perform a business valuation of the manufacture and
sale of coal operation. Having regard to the future plan of the
Group and the valuation performed by Jones Lang, impairment
loss of approximately HK$16,883,000 was made to the carrying
amounts of the property, plant and equipment for the year ended
31 December 2014. The recoverable amounts of approximately of
HK$4,235,000 of the relevant assets have been determined on the
basis of their value-in-use. The pre-tax discount rate in measuring
the amounts of value-in-use was 14.00% in 2014.
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18. W% BERRME ()

BiimE - -BEERFEREREERE
BRAT A e AERRF R RITE -

B3 HEFHs - +hF
ARG & B

= K e 10%

R REE 10% - 33.33%

N 10% — 20%
RE 16.67% — 33.33%
HEWHFEE HH

R-BE-—RAF+-A=+—80 BEK
FFEBPI M AR B BB A R R Rz
BEYNBEZEFZUWEmMAEN
H AR E 4 52,025,0008 7L (= F
— U4 :2,476,0005 7T ) ° 1R 15 A2 EE
MER ARAEERAE RAEDZE
BF2UEMBEMRTESAEESR
EEFEERE-HE_T—AF+=
A=+—HIFE HEEFSELED
HAREHEZHEEB 2 EE-

EREE—_T—NFE+-_A=+—HI
FEZEREERBEEBZRET
F ARRESEETRENGAET
ZEWE - BEIEEZATRESE-
RAREZCZERAEEEBEEL S
ERGEMPEBRTEET G RERE
AR ([{FE]) BEREEREE S
BHETEBGE CEELAEEZ KK
FEIRPEMETZEE  NRRHE
ET-NFF+_A=+—HILFEZ
VI R KR 2 REEE LR EE
154916,883,00078 7T ° iR E EE 2 AJ UK
6] 88 474,235,0007 T IR B F (&
HitEET - N_ZE—WE 2% H
BEESEMAMRATIAELAE14.00% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZ

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18.
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2015, the directors of the Company performed
a review of the recoverable amount of the manufacture and sale
of coal operation based on the fair value less cost of disposal,
determined based on the consideration payable upon disposal of
the manufacture and sale of coal operation. Further details of the
disposal are set out in note 15. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, no impairment loss was considered necessary.

ME BERRE

RZZE—RAF+A=+—8 ' ARF
EERBEATFERENHERREE
MHEEBEENREBET ZHER
NEEBREERBEER 2TKE
SR HESHE2E—SHBHRE
15 - RAREER A BAERDREER

B

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT 19. BHE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF —ET—AF
FET FHT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HmEMEL 2247
Current asset MENEE 264 279
Non-current asset ERBEE 11,226 12,131
11,490 12,410
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group EFNOBEASERBELEZ
classified as held for sale (note 15) HESEE 2 EE (M:E15) (11,490) =
- 12,410

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's prepaid lease payment
represented a medium term lease land in the PRC with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$11,490,000 (2014: HK$12,410,000).
The prepaid lease payment has been reclassified as assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale (note 15).

R-ZE—RAF+_A=+—8 A&EH
ZENBEEE —MDIRF Bz EIEL -
BREIEAYA11,490,000/8 7T ( == —M
F:12,410,0008 L) - FENHEEE
NOoBAEDBEABIEHECLESRH
2 BE (MFE15) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 20152 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSET 0.EBEEE

License
HK$'000
heBR
FET

COST AND CARRYING VALUE AN K BRE(E
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZT—HhF—-—HA—H -
Addition (note 36) ANE (MizE36) 811
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+=-A=+—H 811

The license has a legal life of 1 year but is renewable every year
at minimal cost. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group would renew the license continuously and has
the ability to do so. Various studies including product life cycle
studies, market, competitive and environmental trends, and brand
extension opportunities have been performed by management of
the Group, which supports that the license has no foreseeable limit
to the period over which the provision of services restricted by
license are expected to generate net cash flows for the Group.

As a result, the license is considered by the management of the
Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The license will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead, it
will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired.

At 31 December 2015, management of the Group determines that
there are no impairments of the cash-generating unit containing
the license with indefinite useful life.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit containing the
license is determined on a value in use calculation. Management
of the Group prepared a cash flow forecast based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period, and
discount rate of 16.59%. The forecast for the budgeted period
was based on the approved loan agreement entered before the
reporting date. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the discount rate would not cause the carrying amount
of the cash-generating unit containing a license to exceed the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 20158, % — &

—AFF—A=F—HIFE

GOODWILL 21. B8
HK$'000
FHET
CcosT ;ﬁm
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and RZZE—mNFE—-—H—QH" —M4F
1 January 2015 += ﬂ*‘f‘—EI&_?—EE—H—EI 36,729
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group ENOBASEARBELEZLE
classified as held for sale (note 15) HE (K1EE15) (36,729)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+-_A=+—8H =
IMPAIRMENT Wﬁ
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and RZZE—MmMFE—H—H- —ME
1 January 2015 += ﬂ_+75&7?7£¢7ﬂ75 36,729
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group ENOBERVEABEHEZHESRZ
classified as held for sale (note 15) BE (K5E15) (36,729)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—AF+=-HA=+—H -
CARRYING VALUE FREE
At 31 December 2015 RZE—AF+=-HA=+—H -
At 31 December 2014 R-ZTE—MFE+=-A=+—H =
Goodwill from acquisition of Suntech Worldwide Limited WEBEERKBRAA ([FE]) RH

("Suntech”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Suntech Group”) was allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
The goodwill has been
reclassified to the assets of a disposal group classified as held for

unit of manufacture and sale of coal.

sale as disclosed in note 15.

ZEE-

Bﬁ% Al (M [EEEE])ELZA

PREEREBEENHERRZ
iﬁi?iﬁfioﬁﬁaiéﬁﬁ’“*ﬁﬁﬁfaﬁ
SREZDBEARBFHEZHERE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 RBE AT 2R

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'OOO

—E-EF —Z—mE

FTET T

Costs of investment in an associate R — 2R F &R E KA 111,553 -
Share of post-acquisition losses and DU 18 B R &

other comprehensive expenses Ht2mAx (11,694) =

99,859 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 20152 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. RN E N 2w (@)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had interests in the following

R-ZE—RFE+-A=+—8 Kx&£E

associates: YDl B A N TR R
Proportion of ownership
interests or participating Proportion
Country of Class of shares held of voting
Name of entity Form of entity incorporation shares held by the Group power held Principal activity
rEERR
BREERD BERER
EREE BRS ZRELER BERGER SER LA 2l TEER
2015 2014 2015 2014
Z2-1f —Z-MF ZB-1F —T-MF
East Favor Global Investment Limited  Incorporated The British Virgin Ordinary 49% - 49% - Investment holding
(“East Favor") Islands
RERRREGRAR ([RE)) L EBRLES LAk RERR
HK CPV Green Energy Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 49% - 49%* - Investment holding
BERKTLRARAA Balia &b Lk REER
CPV Green Energy Technology Foreign-investment ~ PRC Registered 49% - 49%"* - Research and development of

(Shenzhen) Co., Limited* enterprises Capital solar power products, solar
photovoltaic products and
semiconductor

R RRE ORI BRAA AERELE HE FMER AERER ABEARERR
+ERHE
Qinghai CPV Green Energy Domestic enterprise ~ PRC Registered 4% - 1%* - Research and development,

Co. Limited* Capital manufacture and sale of solar
power module products and the
operation of photovoltaic power
plants in the PRC

FERERANHERAR CilakE HE FMER KRB EAGHERERTE
EERHEENREREREE
Qinghai Taima CPV Domestic enterprise ~ PRC Registered 29% - 29%* - Manufacturing of photovoltaic

Green Energy Technology Capital power generation system, and

Co., Limited * the construction, operation and
management of photovoltaic
power plants in the PRC

FEFBEAMERNRERAR  HALXK HE FMER ERERSKREEZREENR
KREEH 2 BR BERER
* The English name is for identification purpose only. e EXATHEEFZR

# Indirectly held

On 20 April 2015, Kang Yong International Limited (“Kang
Yong”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into a subscription
agreement with East Favor in which Kang Yong has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for 9,608 new shares at the consideration
of HK$110,250,000 with transaction cost of approximately
HK$1,303,000. East Favor, through its subsidiaries, engaged in the
business of manufacturing photovoltaic power generation system
and construction, operation and management of photovoltaic
power plants in the PRC. The subscription was completed on 11
June 2015 and East Favor was an associate of the Group and has
been accounted for using equity method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZ

22. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. REEE RN T 2= ()
The summarised financial information in respect of the associate FEASERE ARIFEAEREAR
of the Group and is accounted for using equity method is set out B ERBEHTIAT
below:
East Favor and its subsidiaries RERHEKEATR
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-HF —Z e
FTEx FH&T
Current assets e & E 309,057 N/A i A
Non-current assets EMBEE 104,738 N/A 71~ 38 F
Current liabilities MBI B & (238,961) N/A 7~ iE
Non-current liabilities EREEE (22,473) N/A 7 3E A
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZT-EfF —E—mE
FTHExT T T
Revenue for the period from 11 June 2015t0 —E—HAF A+ —HBHZE
31 December 2015 —E-—hF+=ZA=+—H
BiRE 2 W 37,933 N/A 7~ A
Loss for the period from 11 June 2015 to —ET-RFASNAT—RBE
31 December 2015 —E-—RFE+ZA=+—H
HAfR 2 B 1R (18,753) N/A 7~ F
Other comprehensive expense for the periord —Z—HAF A +—H=E
from 11 June 2015 to 31 December 2015 —E-AF+ZA=+—H
HE v EtmEEmE H (5,112) N/A 738 F
Total comprehensive expense for the period —Z—AFA+—H=Z
from 11 June 2015 to 31 December 2015 —E—hF+-A=+—H
ARz E2EXH (23,865) N/A &
The reconciliation of the summarised financial information A EZ25] 2 5 &R 2 HE R B & R
presented above to the carrying amount of the interest in the Al EmREEHREINAT
associate is set out below:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-HF —T-mEF
FTEx FH&T
Net assets of the associate BERNRCEEFE 152,361 N/A i A
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest ANEBREE R EH B AT 2
in East Favor and its subsidiaries BB RERE w2 I 49% N/A 38 A
Goodwill (kS 25,202 N/A 35 F
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REBPREZERRERE
in East Favor 99,859 N/A 35

BESEZERBMRAA 201563k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = F—AF+=H=1+—HILFE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

23. A/ HERE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hF —E—-mE
FET FET
Equity instruments RAETHA
Listed equity investment in London, ReBH EmERKRE  EA
at fair value (note i) FEFE (HE) 8,977 6,739
Unlisted investments in fund, FEEMESEE  ZAFER
at fair value (note ii) & (H&Eii) 35,285 38,873
44,262 45,612
Unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong, REBRIIELTRAES
at cost (note iii) R EHE (B EEiii ) 38,250 38,250
Less: impairment losses recognised B EERZBEEE (30,750) (30,750)
7,500 7,500
51,762 53,112

Notes:

The Group's listed equity investment represented 10.97% (2014: 11.34%)
equity interest in a company listed in Alternative Investment Market of
London Stock Exchange. The listed equity investment is measured at fair
value and is classified as level 1 fair value measurement (see note 8). Fair
value gain of the investment approximately HK$2,238,000 (2014: loss of
HK$761,000) was recognised in other comprehensive income during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

The unlisted investments in funds are measured at fair value and are
classified as level 2 fair value measurement (see note 8). Fair value
loss of the investments approximately HK$3,588,000 (2014: gain of
HK$5,373,000) was recognised in other comprehensive income during the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR R M

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZF

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(CONTINUED)

23. A HHERE (&)

Notes: (Continued) B ok - (48)

i) In 2002, the Group, through an acquisition of a wholly-owned subsidiary, i) R-ZZTE-_F AEEFERHKE-—H2
acquired 30,000,000 promoters’ shares in Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal B KB A 7 1A38,250,0005% 7T X B B A
Sci-Technology Company (“BBJB") (the “Promoters’ Shares”) of RMBO.1 30,000,000t RIL A E RIRFEHERH A
each at a consideration of HK$38,250,000, which was equivalent to 2.53% RAm ([EABER]) SREEARKCT
of total issued share capital (including H shares and Promoters’ Shares) of ZER ARG ([BERARSD]) - BERI
BBJB. AREREBTRALE (BEHBRRELA

B 5 )2.53% °

BBJB is a joint stock company with limited liability incorporated in the IRERARFPEFMALZBRNBERE
PRC with its H shares listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock EAR - EHRERB R FTAIZER ([BIZR])
Exchange (the “GEM Board”). The Promoters’ Shares were unlisted share EW-BERABRNDABIEATER-_ZEZTZTF
capital issued by BBJB when it was initially listed on the GEM Board in BIRTERIZER ETIR BT 2 3E ETIR A - B
2000. According to the Company Law in the PRC, the Promoters’ Shares BHRBEARE FRAROGEILEATEINZ
were not transferable within three years from the date of incorporation of TTETEF AT hBaFMKZREFT =4
BBJB on 29 March 2000. In the absence of active market, the Promoters’ ATEEZE - HNRZERT S BEAR
Shares are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting MR EBRIERABRESE  BAEEE
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant AFEGBFEEAKR XA EEFRREE
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values A SEMETEFEARD 2 AFE-

cannot be measured reliably.

In prior years, the directors of the Company were of the opinion that the RBEFE ARRAEERA AIHEER
recoverable amount of the available-for-sale investments was significantly BEzaEeERERERKA  HERE
below its original cost, an impairment loss of HK$30,750,000 was = N FERRE B 830,750,000 L e R =&
recognised in profit or loss. At 31 December 2015, the carrying amount —AF+-_A=1+—H A#EHEELEY
of available-for-sale investments of approximately HK$7,500,000 (2014: fi& [ {8 49 57,500,000/ 7T (=T — PO 4 :
HK$7,500,000), net of impairment loss of approximately HK$30,750,000 7,500,00058 7T ) @ BBk EREREIELY
(2014: HK$30,750,000). No impairment was recognised for the years 30,750,0007% 7t ( —Z — Pg 4 : 30,750,000
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. BL) HE_ZT-—RFR-_ZF-—NF+=

RA=+—HIEFE MERRRE-

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group's available-for- RZE—RFR-_ZE—MFE+=A

sale investments that are denominated in currency other than =+—H AEEHEREAIELE

the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out HMEBEERB TS ENT

below:

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-HF = s
THER FHET
GBP e 8,977 6,739
usb e 15,899 22,851
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = F—AF+=H=1+—HILFE

24.INVENTORIES 24. 7 8
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-EF —T-EF
FET FH&T
Raw materials and consumables R E #E - 7,386
Finished goods BIRX an - 3,518
- 10,904
25. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 25. B mEHE RIE
The finance leases are secured by the motor vehicles and other BEMENTE REMEE RS
plant and machinery. All interest rates inherent in the leases are ER -HEZAMARERMEIZEHELDER
fixed at the contract date over the lease terms. REHBHEE-
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-HF —Z e
FET FH&IT
Analysed for reporting purposes HBEEMITARDEE
as current asset 176,751 —

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

REREMK REAEARZAE
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—B-Hf —T-QPOF ZB-RE —TQOF
TET T TR TEL

Finance lease receivables comprise: EhREEERERRE:
Within one year —ER 180,242 = 176,751 -
Less: unearned interest income R ERERA 2 A (3,491) = - =
Present value of minimum lease ERSERENHzRE

payment receivables 176,751 - 176,751 -
Effective interest rates of the above finance leases range from LR ERE 2 BRFEFNENF51%
5.1% to 6% per annum. £6% °

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR R M

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZF

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 25. B mEMERIE ()
Before accepting any finance lease arrangement, the Group FEXAMNBERERHR  ~5EE
assesses the financial strength of the lessee and considers the SHEEBAZHBE N WERE TZ
credit limit granted to the lessee. In addition, the Group may EBAZEERE I HBE K
request for the guarantor with strong financial status where SEAEEREHABREMBRR
necessary. ZHERAN
At 31 December 2015, finance lease receivables of approximately RZE—RAF+—A=+—H Ek@
RMB23,400,000, (equivalent to approximately HK$27,940,000) EEERELAR23,400,0007T (48
was past due. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, £ 1R #927,940,0007% 7T ) E #0 H o 70 =R
repayment terms and schedules have been negotiated and agreed HHIRE - AR B EAE A B EE I H
between the Group and the lessees and as such there is no TEEBGHREEE - At e 8 E
default in repayment. Accordingly, the directors of the Company EBER Al - ARRESR AL M
considered no impairment loss has been recognised. R EEE -
As at 31 December 2015, the age of the finance lease receivables RZE—RAF+=ZA=+—H 1BEME
was within one year based on the effective dates of the relevant BMEESHCERBE R ERE
lease contracts. RIBZRBRB—FNRN-
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. E5 K H b B W =R IH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-HF —T-F
FHET FHT
Trade receivables 2 5 fE W kI8 68,472 112,352
Less: allowance for impairment of B 5 HE MR IE R (B
trade receivables (1,449) (3,602)
Trade receivables, net B 5 fE W SR IEF 5 67,023 108,750
Prepayments a1 5K I8 1,501 1,506
Deposits and other receivables & & H fth FEUGRIR 3,830 3,656
72,354 113,912

BESEZERBFRAA 201563k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 20152 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group allows an average credit period normally ranging
from 30 days to 180 days (2014: 30 days to 180 days) to its
trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debt) presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period,
which approximates the respective revenue recognition date.
A trade receivable of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$50,526,000 (2015: nil) was secured by the ordinary share of
the debtor for the year ended 31 December 2014.

26. B 5 K H fb FE W FRIE ()

AEERTEESRFZFHEESN
— &N F308 £180H (= F — P4 :
30BE180H) 2@ LA N AR REH
R AZBWRABEABY) KRE
HHZ7 2 EWE ZZE (EMNKBRR
REBE ERRI M - BE_ZT—NF
+—A=+—HLEFE AEE—£Y
50,526,000 L (Z T —HF )2
B S EUGIB R BB AT BRI

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-RF —E-mE

FTEx FHT

0-30 days 0%30H 22,452 51,054
31-60 days 31£60H 360 49,505
61-90 days 61£290H 44,195 4,159
91-120 days 91&120H - =
121-180 days 121£180H - —
Over 180 days HBiE180H 16 4,032
Trade receivables, net B 5 REWEIE 67,023 108,750

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$16,000 (2014:
HK$4,032,000) which were past due at the end of the reporting
period and for which the Group has not provided for doubtful
debt.

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 20158 2 =&

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The aging analysis of trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired based on the invoice date at the end of reporting date,
which approximately the respective revenue recognition date, is as

e IR R M

—BEF=AS—AULFEE

26. EZ R EMEWRIE &)

RESRSHR (HASEREZHERA
HZHZAHNCAHEEREZES
FEMRIABRER AT AN T -

follows:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-HF —ET—MmF
FET FAT
Over 180 days HBiE180H 16 4,032

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The movements in allowance for doubtful debts of trade
receivables were as follows:

ERmEEREZE S EKTIES R
LZERAEBEEERTEETLEZE
YRP -RBRATER BEEMEE-
MR EEEETESEREE ZS5&%
AR AR 28Uk E - ME T it 45
et IR ERE -

BIRUREZREBEEHEHNT

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-—1F —E—MF

FET FET

1 January —H—H 3,602 3,649
Reclassified to the assets of ENDBEADEABIEHEZ

a disposal group classified as held for sale HEEBEE (2,038) =

Exchange realignment I 5 GE (115) (47)

31 December +—-B=+—H 1,449 3,602

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses a system to
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed on
a regular basis.

EEMEMH LA AEEERA—E
RGHEBEERP 2 EEER XER
EFZEERB -BEF 2EERBEIIE
HEZe

=

EEEZRERAR 2015F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 201582 =&

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s trade receivables
are determined individually whether they are impaired. The
individually impaired receivables are recognised based on the credit
history of its customers, such as financial difficulties or default
in payments, and current market conditions. An accumulated
allowance for doubtful debts of trade receivables of approximately
HK$1,449,000 (2014: HK$3,602,000) has been recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

—AFT—HA=1—HIFE

26.

ESRHEMEYERIE &)

REHREHR NEBEZE RIS RR
EEEKEHRYKAEE RRE-
EREREZEBERAKREER Z
S B A2 8% (N8 75 IR 2 sl R BRI ) I
BERTMAER -BE_T—RAFT_H

=+ HIFE BESRUZFERER
& B 49 51,449,000 T (Z 2 — M

£ 13,602,000 7T ) B FER ©

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group's trade and other RZE—RAFE=_FT—NOF+H
receivables that are denominated in currency other than the _+ El KEIE%&E?M&‘WM
functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out RIFEURESEEER 2 e E¥EET A
below: R
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
—g-HEF -—T-Qm4F
FET FiBT
usb eV 44,119 49,316
RMB AR - 50,526
27.HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 27. REXZRE
2015 2014
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E-EF —E—mEF
FET FHET
Held for trading investments: FERSHIKE
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —RBEB LT ZBRAE 232,686 98,030

Held-for-trading investments are stated at fair value. The fair
value of the listed securities has been determined by reference
to published price quotations in active markets. Loss on fair
value change of held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$47,685,000 (2014: gain of approximately HK$8,349,000)
has been recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31

December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group disposed
of certain listed securities and realised gain on held for trading
investments of approximately HK$35,027,000 (2014:
approximately HK$5,414,000) has been recognised in profit or loss.

loss of

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2015

BERZFEERAFETEE - ETHES
ZAFEEREFRMS 2B ERR
BEF - #2—_FT—AF+-_A=1+—
HIEFEEREBEZERZBIERSE
&N EE B 2 FE 447,685,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR R M

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ A=+ —HIFZF

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT

The bank deposit of approximately HK$55,000 (2014: HK$59,000)
was pledged by the Group for the purpose of issuing a guarantee
by the bank to a service provider for security against default
payment as at 31 December 2015 and 2014. The pledged bank
deposit carried at fixed interest rate of 0.25% per annum for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the Group and
bank balances that are interest-bearing at prevailing market
interest rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.35% (2014: 0.001% to
1.400%) per annum and have original maturity of three months or
less.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
which are subject to foreign exchange control regulations or not
freely transferable:

28.

29.

EEFRITER

RZE—RAFR-_FT—DTOF+=A
=+—H AEEDEFRITERLY
55,000 70 ( = Z — M 4F : 59,0007
TL) A BSRITR RSB LE NN
HONLZE2UERER- BE-_T—A1F
MN—EB-—mE+-A=+—HILEFEE-
ERIRRITIE A B E FFIZE0.25%51
H o

RITEHRREAE

BITHEHEREASCREASENEFERS
NMARTTHE 8% IR IRTT T 45 F F) %0.001
EZE035E (ZFE—WF:0.001E=E
1.400) 8 BERBHBE A=Ak
AR e

RITAEREBR P AN TERINEE
5 IR Bl Sk A Al B i 2 3R

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-hF —T—mmE
FET FET

Amounts denominated in: AR5 &M EHE 2 508
HK$ BT - 3,247
RMB AR 57,780 746
57,780 3,993

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
relevant group entities:

RITHER LIRS P AUIFAEEEE
BERZEEEENT

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-—FE —E—F

FET T T

RMB AR 513 981
GBP e 463 486
usb =TT 490 172
HK$ BT - 3,247
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 20152 = F—AF+=H=+—HILFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30. EZ R EMENFRE

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented J«AT?%E’\#E&:HEEEHZ% BHIZ% 2
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: BB S IERK S

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-AF —T-F
FTHET FiB T
0-30 days 0%30H 272 450
31-60 days 31£60H 5 68
61-90 days 61290H 2 8
Over 90 days #B:AB90H 602 10,993
Trade payables FET & 558 881 11,519
Value-added tax payable FERHIEETR 395 5,060
Accrued charges FEFTE 3,845 3,240
Other payables H 8 (< FRIE 7,699 12,969
12,820 32,788

The average credit period on purchases of goods is normally
ranging from 30 days to 90 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled
within the credit timeframe.

31. LOAN FROM A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount is unsecured, non-trade in nature and repayable on
demand. Other than an amount of approximately HK$21,190,000
which carries interest at 2% over Hong Kong prime rate per
annum, the remaining balance is interest-free as at 31 December
2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 201582 = FE—hE+ - A=4+—HIFZF

32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32.

The major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and
movements thereof during the current and prior years are
summarised below:

i 3 B T8

RAFER LFERRBZTERER
HAE(BE) REZSHPANT -

Fair value
change
Accelerated in held for
tax Tax trading
depreciation losses investments Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5
illp:d XERE
RERE RBER ATESE @t
THx FET T THET
At 1 January 2014 RZZE-—ME—-A—H 37 (37) - -
Charged (credit) to profit or loss BERAR (Gt A) 216 (2,818) 2,602 =
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZZ-—ME
TZA=+-BER
—T-h%¥—-A—-H 253 (2,855) 2,602 -
Charged (credit) to profit or loss BEEMER (T A) 768 (1,650) 882 =
At 31 December 2015 RZE—1%F
+=A=+—-H 1,021 (4,505) 3,484 -

At 31 December 2015, the Group has estimated unutilised tax
losses of approximately HK$234,961,000 (2014: HK$186,537,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of estimated unutilised tax losses
of approximately HK$27,304,000 (2014: HK$17,303,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised of the remaining tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The estimated unutilised tax losses of approximately
HK$208,646,000 (2014: HK$163,142,000) may be carried forward
against future taxable income indefinitely under the current tax
legislation in Hong Kong.

R_E—RAFE+-_A=+—0 A&H
A AER SE AR SR F 2 Bt KRB AR
E538 49 5234,961,00008 T (= ZE — 1Y
F : 186,537,000/ L) - AEBE (A
F R Eh A3 AR 7% 5 48 £927,304,0005% 7T

— T4 : 17,303,000/ 7T ) HERIE
SEFRIEE E - AR AR BE TR B 18 2% F)
R - AN B E LR T IS B8 7
RIEEFBEE

fhET R B) B F 7% /B3 18 49208,646,0007%8
7L (—Z—P4 : 163,142,000/ 7T ) 1R
BRBRITE A ERBLEE - UKE
RIRFERFIUA ©
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The estimated unutilised tax losses attributable to subsidiaries
in the PRC amounted to approximately HK$25,653,000 (2014:
HK$22,800,000) that will expire within five years from the end
of the reporting period. Included in the estimated unutilised tax
losses is an amount of approximately HK$24,797,000 (2014:
HK$22,800,000) related to the subsidiary in the PRC classified as
disposal group as at 31 December 2015.

The estimated unutilised tax losses attributable to a subsidiary
in Singapore amounted to approximately HK$662,000 (2014:
HK$595,000) of which the use is subject to the agreement of the
tax authority and compliance with certain provision of the tax
legislation in Singapore and may be carried forward against future
taxable income indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary difference of HK$23,470,000 (2014: HK$23,470,000)
related to the subsidiary in the PRC classified as disposal group as
at 31 December 2015. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$9,587,000
(2014: HK$50,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. A&
Number of Number of Share Share
shares shares capital capital
RO EE Ring B B R
2015 2014 2015 2014
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-Rf% —T-QmE ZB-Rf C-"TQNF
TR T TER TR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SIREE0.05% .2 &l
Authorised: EE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—AkK
+-A=1+—H 50,000,000 50,000,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRAR:
At 1 January R—H—H 2,917,991 2,431,671 145,900 121,584
Issue of shares upon open offer (note i) RARBEERETRR
(Pt 1,458,995 - 72,949 -
Issue of shares upon placing (note i) BB ATRR D (P EEiT) 875,380 486,320 43,769 24,316
Exercise of share options (note i) TR R AR (P EEiii ) 12,200 = 610 =
As 31 December W+ZR=+—8H 5,264,566 2,917,991 263,228 145,900
Notes: B & -

(ii)

(iii)

On 10 November 2014, the Company announced the open offer of one
offer share for every two existing shares held on 4 December 2014, with
subscription price of HK$0.15 per offer share. Total of 1,458,995,422
shares were issued on 15 January 2015.

On 21 October 2014, arrangements were made for a private placement to
independent private investors of 486,320,000 share of HK$0.05 each in
the Company, at a price of HK$0.18 per share representing a discount of
approximately 11.33% to closing market price of the Company’s shares on
29 September 2014.

On 24 June 2015, arrangements were made for a private placement to
independent private investors of 875,380,000 share of HK$0.05 each in
the Company, at a price of HK$0.25 per share representing a discount of
approximately 7.41% to closing market price of the Company’s shares on
12 June 2015.

On 2 November 2015, options were exercised to subscribe for 12,200,000
ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration of approximately
HK$3,367,000, of which approximately HK$610,000 was credited to share
capital and approximately HK$160,000 was transferred from the share
options reserve to the share premium in accordance with policy set out in
note 3.

(ii)

(iii)

RZZ—WFE+—A+8  AQaEMHEN
—ZT-NFE+ - ANASEEMKREARGD
BE-—REERMETAREE RBEAR
REERND0.I5B T - R_T—HFE—A
+FRHB - &#£1,458,995,422 (R AR D REFEAT o

R-F—NFE+A=+—8 BIEHRHEA
B AR & & B & 2N A 51486,320,0000%
BRRE(E0.058 TR 7 - B1% R EAR0.187
T (BARARBROR=_Z—NEALA=1TA
BZ W mEHT#A11.33%) °

R-ZF—AFANA=+MA  BIEHRER
B AR E & B & AN A F1875,380,000/%
SR MEE0.05B Tk - (B AEAR0.25%
T(REARAROR=ZZE—RFSA+=H
Z W BT ELT.41% )

R-Z—A&E+— A=A BRERTEN
R AR F)12,200,0000% LA - RELH A
3,367,000/ 7T * E H147610,0007% sT 5T AR
X+ 71 49160,00078 TTAR R # A P 7E3 2 Bk
BEREFGEERERMDEE-
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The 2012 scheme

On 22 May 2012, the Company adopted the 2012 Scheme
(the “2012 Scheme”) under which the board of directors of
the Company may at its discretion offer to any director of
the Company (including non-executive director), employee,
suppliers, customers, any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group,
shareholders of any member of the Group or any entity in which
the Group holds an equity interests and any other group or classes
of persons or entities who have contributed to the development
and growth of the Group (“Participant”) to subscribe for shares in
the Company in accordance with the terms of the 2012 Scheme.
The principal purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentive
or rewards for the participant’s contributions to the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of
adoption of the 2012 Scheme, unless a refresh approval from the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained. However, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2012 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.

The subscription price of the option shares granted under the 2012
Scheme shall be a price to be determined by the directors of the
Company being not less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; (iii) the
nominal value of a share.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (cONTINUED)

The 2012 scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any individual under the 2012 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The 2012 Scheme does not contain any requirement of a minimum
period and the board of directors of the Company may in its
absolute discretion impose a minimum period requirement for
each option granted will be made by the board of directors of
the Company on a case by case basis and will not be made to the
advantage of the Participants.

The 2012 Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing from the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme to 21
May 2022, after which no further options will be granted but the
options which are granted during the life of the 2012 Scheme may
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue
and the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall in all other respects
remain in full force and effect in respect thereof.

Options granted under the 2012 Scheme must be taken up within
21 days of the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the
grant.

At 31 December 2015, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
2012 Scheme was 399,622,090 (2014: 243,000,000), representing
7.59% (2014: 8.33%) of the shares of the Company in issue at the
end of reporting period.

34. BRAERTE (2

—E——FEHE (s

ERE - — —F:F 8 R AR REM
HAa BB R 81 TR @A Z B
EEITEMEEIT R Al e 1T 2 D4
T EHBEBEBITERMNZ1% °

—E AT EHAEARES
RZHRE MARFEERA2ENIE
RERERBHR - FARE SO RBRE
LEERBHREHEERETRAIE
NEE ATER2EEZMEMEL
BRAME-

T —FFESEERN T ——F
SFEBHEE—_E-_—_FERA -+ —
HIETFER—EBR BB ITeE—
PREBRE ER_F——F5ElF
BB AR 2 B AR M T AR R EL BT IR
RUETAITE BT ——F:tElz
BEXEMBEMSTEHIRE TR AN
MAEA -

BREBE-Z-—_FFIREZBRER
IR H A EE21 R AREE - R B
B AR ABRARAMUETT:
ERERBEREZRE-

RZE—RAF+A=+—H RBE=
E——FHE ERLRBREERRT
2D EE A399,622,0900% (=&
— P04 : 243,000,0000% ) * HE R4
HIRARBIEBITRND 27.59% (=
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
The 2012 scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options granted under the 2012 Scheme during the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014:

For the year ended 31 December 2015

34. BRAESHE ()

TEREEHEZE_T—RHAFR_ZT—H
FH+-A=+—HIMEFE  RiE=
T—ZFiE ARERECERES

BE_Z—HF+-A=1+—HLEE

Number of share options
BREYE
Exercise
price Adjusted  Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed  Outstanding
Date of Exercisable (before exercise asat  Adjusted on during during during during asat
grant period 15.1.2015) price 1.1.2015 15.1.2015 the year the year the year the year 31.12.2015
HKS HKS
R R-B-1% R-B-1f R-B-1%
(z%3-1% fE -A-8 -AtER +-A=t-H
BEHAH fiid | -Bt+aA#H) ikE MR il FRRY ERK ERRN EREN LESTd
Ar A7
(Note)
(Wi)
Director ~ 3.11.2014 3.11.2014 10 2.11.2015 030 0.2758 145,800,000 12,815,820 - - (52,871,940)  (105,743,880) -
EH “2-mE  ZZ-mE+-A=AZE
t-A=B -Z-1%t+-R=H
17.7.2015 17.7.2015 10 16.7.2018 030 Not applicable - - 80,822,090 - (10,034,030 - 70,788,060
-1 ZT-EFtATtRZ @A
tA+tA  ZE-\EtAtAR
Employee  3.11.2014 3.11.2014 t0 2.11.2015 0.30 0.2758 97,200,000 8,543,880 - (12,200,000) - (93,543,880) -
&2 “2-mE —Z-MET-A=RE
+-A=R ZF-AFt-Az=A
17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 030 Not applicable - - 218,868,060 - (28,034,030) - 190,834,030
“2-15Ff CE-RELAtHRAE B ol
tAttR  ZE-\FtRA1RR
Consultant  17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 030 Not applicable - - 138,000,000 - - - 138,000,000
B “F-1% —ZF-nftAttRZ B ol
tAttR  ZE-\EtRA1RB
Total 243,000,000 21,359,700 437,690,150 (12,200,000) (90,940,000)  (199,287,760) 399,622,090
&3t
Exercisable at the end of the year 399,622,090
REXTE
Weighted average exercise price HKS0.307T  HKS0.2758% 7L HKSO.30%7 HKS0.2758%7 HK$0.2850%7 HKS0.2758%7  HKS0.30%7T

WEFITER
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 34. BRAETTE ()
The 2012 scheme (Continued) “E-CZFEFE W)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_Z—NF+_HA=+T—HIFE
Number of share options
EREHE
Outstanding Granted Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise as at during during as at
Date of grant  Exercisable period price 1.1.2014 the year the year 31.12.2014
HK$
R=ZB-NF R=B-NF
—-RA—-B t=ZB=+-H
REBH L fTfEE i R AT FRARE PR i RATHE
BT
Director 3.11.2014 3.11.2014 to 2.11.2015 0.30 - 145,800,000 = 145,800,000
% “Z-MmE —E-EE+-A=HEZ
+—A=H “E-RF+-AZH
Employee 3.11.2014 3.11.2014 t0 2.11.2015 0.30 - 97,200,000 - 97,200,000
B8 g2 “Z-ME+-A=HZE
+—A=H —Z-R%+—-RZH
Total = 243,000,000 - 243,000,000
st
Exercisable at the end of the year 243,000,000
RERTITE
Weighted average exercise price - HK$0.307% 7T - HK$0.307% 7T
IEFATERE
During the year ended 31 December 2015, options were granted BEZ—RAF+=A=+—H1tF
on 17 July 2015 (2014: granted on 3 November 2014). The E BRER_Z-—HAFLtATLtER
estimated fair values of the options granted on the grant date, H(Z2E—MF:-RZT—MOF+—A=
were approximately HK$10,671,000 (2014: HK$3,475,000) and AEL) iR EEERE 2 EREA
were determined by using the Binominal Model. FEXA10,671,0008 T (ZZF —MHF

3,475,000 70 ) MA—BABA MEE o
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The 2012 scheme (Continued)

The significant inputs into the Binomial Model were as follows:
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34. BRERTE (®)

—E-—F8 W
ToA-—EAEABTABA

2015 2014
—E-hF —T—mmE

Adjusted share price at the grant date

Exercise price per share FRATEE
Expected volatility T8 HA R i
Expected dividend yield T8 HA AR B
Expected life TEHAS wp

Annual risk-free interest rate 2 [ f A I =R

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatilities of the share prices of the comparable companies over
one year.

The aggregate fair values of the above granted options
were approximately HK$1,964,000 (2014: HK$2,082,000),
HK$5,340,000 (2014: HK$1,393,000) and HK$3,367,000 (2014:
nil) which were to be recognised as share-based payments
expenses granted to directors, employees and consultants,
respectively, for the year ended 31 December 2015 with a
corresponding increase in share options reserve.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of th